
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 
 
If you require further information, please contact: Kirsty Hunt 
Telephone: 01344 353108 
Email: kirsty.hunt@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
Published: 16 January 2012 

  

 

 NOTICE OF MEETING 
Governance & Audit Committee 
Tuesday 24 January 2012, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell 
To: The Governance & Audit Committee 
Councillor Ward (Chairman), Councillor Wade (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Allen, Ms Brown, 
Heydon, McCracken, Thompson, Worrall and Mr G S Anderson 
cc: Substitute Members of the Committee 
Councillors Mrs Ballin, Blatchford, Mrs Hayes, Leake, Mrs McCracken and Mrs Temperton 
 
ALISON SANDERS 
Director of Corporate Services 
 



 

 

Governance & Audit Committee 
Tuesday 24 January 2012, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, 
Bracknell 
AGENDA 
 
 Page No 
1. Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute members.  
 

 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive any declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, and the 
nature of that interest, in respect of any matter to be considered at this 
meeting.  
 

 

3. Minutes - 8 November 2011   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meetings of the 
Committee held on 8 November 2011.  
 

1 - 4 

4. Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.  
 

 

5. Audit Plan   

 To note the External Audit Plan for 2011/12.  
 

5 - 28 

6. Update on Progress - Certification of Claims and Returns   

 To provide the Committee with an update on the progress the Housing 
and Council Tax Benefit Service has made since last reporting to 
Governance and Audit Committee in September 2011.  
 

29 - 36 

7. Treasury Management   

 To review the Treasury Management Report.  
 

37 - 60 

8. Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy   

 To present the revised Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy for review and 
approval.  
 

61 - 68 

 



GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
8 NOVEMBER 2011 
7.30  - 8.20 PM 
  
 
Present:  
Bracknell Forest Borough Council: 
Councillors Ward (Chairman), Allen, Ms Brown, Heydon, McCracken, Thompson, Worrall and 
Mrs McCracken (Substitute). 
 
Independent Member: 
Gordon Anderson 
 
Apologies for absence were received from:  
Councillor Wade 

60. Apologies for Absence  
The Committee noted the attendance of the following substitute Member: 
 

Councillor Mrs McCracken for Councillor Wade. 

61. Declarations of Interest  
There were no declarations of interest. 

62. Minutes - 29 September 2011  
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 29 September 2011 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 

63. Annual Audit Letter  
Phil Sharman, District Auditor, presented the Audit Commission’s Annual Audit Letter 
2010/11 to the Governance and Audit Committee. The Annual Audit Letter focused 
on the Council’s financial statements and arrangements to achieve value for money 
in the use of resources. The Letter’s new format was designed to be accessible to the 
public on the Council’s website. 
 
An unqualified opinion on the Council’s 2010/11 financial statements had been given 
on 30 September 2011. It was noted that the Audit Commission felt that the Council 
had prepared well for the transition to International Financial Reporting Standards but 
that it needed to improve arrangements for accounting for fixed assets. 
 
An unqualified opinion on the Council’s arrangements for securing value for money 
had been given on 30 September 2011. It was noted that the Audit Commission felt 
that the Council had recognised that difficult decisions about priorities and services 
lay ahead and had set up a framework to decide and identify options for delivering 
priorities. It was also noted that the Audit Commission felt that the Council needed to 
maintain an emphasis on strategic policy changes and longer-run savings 

Agenda Item 3

1



 

programmes to shift the balance away from an annual round of targets to balance the 
revenue budget. 
 
The Annual Audit Letter contained three recommendations: 
• Monitor implementation of recommendations made in my annual governance 

report on aspects of internal financial control including: 
o procedures for accounting for fixed assets 
o procedures for journal processing 

• Maintain an emphasis on identifying policy options, and planning and 
delivering savings programmes which achieve long run financial sustainability 
for the Council 

• In the context of broader changes to the Local Government financial regime, 
demonstrate the Council’s continuing financial resilience by updating the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy to reflect the impact of strategic policy 
changes and longer-run savings programmes. 

 
Members asked for clarification on the accounting of fixed assets and the Committee 
were advised that CiPFA were currently consulting on changing the method of 
valuations for infrastructure assets. This would ensure that Central and Local 
Government were all using the same method. This would potentially mean a 
significant change in the way assets are valued. 
 
The District Auditor confirmed that the 2010/11 Audit was now complete and thanked 
officers for their co-operation throughout the audit process and for their support over 
his four year term as District Auditor. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Helen Thompson, the new District Auditor, who would be 
attending future meetings to present the Audit Commission’s findings. Catherine 
Morganti would remain the Audit Manager for the authority.   
 
RESOLVED that the Annual Audit Letter 2010/11, at Appendix A of the report, be 
noted. 
 
RECOMMENDED to the Corporate Management Team that the recommendations 
set out in the Annual Audit Letter 2010/11 be reflected in the Corporate Services 
Service Plan for the coming year. 

64. Internal Audit Assurance report  
The Head of Audit & Risk Management presented the Internal Audit report which 
provided a summary of Internal Audit activity during the period April to October 2011.  
 
It was reported that 34 audit reports had been issued in draft or finalised since the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12 was approved by the Governance and Audit 
Committee. Of the reports issued, limited assurance opinions had been given for 3 
audits.  
 
The Committee noted that 6 memos had been drafted or finalised and were produced 
in place of reports as these were targeted reviews on housing benefits following up 
previous recommendations and recording results of spot check visits rather than full 
systems reviews. The Head of Audit and Risk Management advised three spot check 
visits had been undertaken with the first two focussing on ensuring supporting 
documentation was in place and the third visit checking assessment calculations.  
The outcomes had been positive from the targeted work and spot checks had 
identified only minor errors. The Committee noted, however, that it would take some 
time for these improvements to be reflected in the external audit. 

2



 

 
The Committee noted that the limited assurance for Binfield CE Primary School was 
concluded overall for this audit due to one priority 1 recommendation being raised to 
address concerns that there were limited documented financial procedures in place 
and also because of the high number of priority 2 recommendations (16). These 
related to governance and financial management arrangements, inventory, the 
private fund, lettings income, school trips, imprest and ordering. The Committee was 
advised that the Local Authority continued to support and work with the school in 
addressing the weaknesses highlighted in the audit report. The Chief Officer: 
Performance and Resources had visited the school and found that they were making 
good progress with a number of recommendations already completed. The Client 
questionnaire had been ‘unsatisfactory’ and it was explained that in particular there 
had been an expectation that the scope of the audit was negotiable but that the 
approach taken with all schools was consistent. The Head of Audit & Risk 
Management agreed with the point raised in the client questionnaire that there had 
been a delay in preparing the report due to annual leave but did not support the 
comment that the assessments were too harsh. Members discussed the Diocesan 
support to voluntary aided schools in relation to financial matters and it was explained 
that they would only be involved in matters relating to capital interests.    
 
The Committee noted that the limited assurance for Headspace was concluded as 
five priority 1 recommendations were raised. These were to address weaknesses in 
the completeness of income collected and banked, recording of income, expenditure 
without supporting documentation and the fact that the bank account used for funding 
expenditure and banking income was outside of the Council’s accounting records. It 
was clarified that Headspace should have complied with the Council’s accounting 
processes and that despite the relatively low expenditure for 2010/11 of 
approximately £57k the Committee were concerned about the fundamental nature of 
the weaknesses. The Head of Audit & Risk Management advised the Committee that 
management had informed her that agreed actions to address these issues had been 
implemented including the closure of the bank account. 
 
The Committee noted that the limited assurance for the Emergency Duty Team was 
concluded as initially five priority 1 recommendations had been raised. The Head of 
Audit and Risk Management advised that since her update report was produced, one 
priority 1 recommendation to ensure employment checks are renewed every three 
years had been downgraded to priority 2 as CQC had recently issued guidance 
stating that this was not a requirement but authorities should decide what was 
appropriate based on the nature of the service undertaken and risks associated. The 
four remaining priority 1 recommendations were to improve controls over overtime 
claims and checks on time sheets and review the contract for the provision and 
maintenance of the MIS database and time recording procedures. The Head of Audit 
& Risk Management advised the Committee that management had informed her that 
actions were being taken forward to address the recommendations and incremental 
improvements had been made to address results from previous audits. New 
procedures had been implemented to improve controls over time sheets and overtime 
claims. The MIS database was due to be upgraded which will provide a more 
supportable solution and new procedures had been introduced for time recording. 
The Head of Audit & Risk Management clarified that the issues relating to time claims 
were connected to late adjustments to the rota and that she had been advised that 
administrative checks have been introduced to ensure time recording was taking 
place. 
 
The Committee queried the number of audits which had not met the timescale for 
production of reports. It was explained that many of the delays were on reviews 
undertaken by one particular auditor from the outsourced provider HW Controls and 

3



 

Assurance who had significant sickness absence but a S113 agreement with 
Reading and Wokingham Borough Councils’ Internal Audit Teams had enabled the 
Council to maintain its progress on the current Internal Audit plan. It was clarified that 
the contract with H. W Controls and Assurance was results based and payment was 
only made upon receipt of a satisfactory draft report.  
 
The Head of Audit & Risk Management updated members on current progress since 
the publication of the agenda. The following audit reports had been finalised: 
Emergency Duty Team, Youth Offending Service and Planned maintenance and 
Capital projects. The following audit reports were available in draft: Officer expenses, 
Downshire Golf and Drug and Alcohol Team. 
 
The Borough Treasurer emphasised that the Corporate Management Team took 
limited assurance very seriously. The Head of Audit & Risk Management explained 
that all audits with limited assurance would be revisited in 2012/2013 and that future 
reports would indicate whether audits were as a result of previous limited assurance. 
 
RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Assurance Report, April – October 2011 be noted.  
 

 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

4



Unrestricted 

TO: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
24 JANUARY 2012 

  
 

EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2011/12 
Borough Treasurer 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1.1 To note the External Audit Plan for 2011/12. 

2 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
2.1 That the Governance and Audit Committee notes the External Audit Plan for 

2011/12. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
3.1 To advise the Committee of District Audit’s planned work with regard to the 2011/12 

audit of accounts and value for money conclusion. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
4.1 None 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
5.1 Attached to this report is the External Audit Plan for 2011/12.  The District Auditor, 

Helen Thompson, will attend the meeting of the Committee and will present and 
answer questions on the plan. 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
Borough Solicitor 

6.1 Nothing to add to the report. 
Borough Treasurer 

6.2 Nothing to add to the report. 
Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.3 There are no equalities issues arising from this report. 
Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.4 The External Audit Plan for 2011/12 takes account of the District Auditor’s 
assessment of the risks facing the Council.  Some of these, such as public spending 
pressures, are also included in the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 

Agenda Item 5

5



Unrestricted 

7 CONSULTATION 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
7.1 Council officers. 
 Method of Consultation 
7.2 Circulation of the draft plan and internal meetings. 
 Representations Received 
7.3 Included in the attached plan. 

Background Papers 
 
None 
 
Contact for further information 
Alan Nash - 01344 352180 
Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

6



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
1

 A
u

d
it

 p
la

n
B

ra
ck

n
el

l F
o

re
st

 C
o

u
n

ci
l

A
u

d
it

 2
01

1/
12

 

7



 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
2

C
o

n
te

n
ts

In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

3

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 W

h
o

le
 o

f 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

A
cc

o
u

n
ts

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..4

V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
..8

K
ey

 m
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
10

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..1
1

In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
2

F
ee

s
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
3

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
ct

iv
it

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

..1
5

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 B
as

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
.1

7

A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

...
...

.1
8

       

8



In
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

T
h

is
 p

la
n

 s
et

s 
o

u
t 

th
e 

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

au
d

it
. T

h
e 

p
la

n
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n
 t

h
e 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

’s
 

ri
sk

-b
as

ed
 a

p
p

ro
ac

h
 t

o
 a

u
d

it
 p

la
n

n
in

g
.

R
es

p
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f A
ud

ite
d 

B
od

ie
s 

se
ts

 o
ut

 th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 is

su
ed

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

e 
S

ta
te

m
en

t t
o 

yo
u.

  

T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t s

um
m

ar
is

es
 w

he
re

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

ite
d 

bo
dy

 b
eg

in
 a

nd
 e

nd
 a

nd
 I 

un
de

rt
ak

e 
m

y 
au

di
t w

or
k 

to
 

m
ee

t t
he

se
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s.
 

I c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 g

ov
er

ni
ng

 m
y 

au
di

t w
or

k,
 in

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
: 

 
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 A

ct
 1

99
8;

 a
nd

  
 

 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
lo

ca
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t b
od

ie
s.

  

M
y 

au
di

t d
oe

s 
no

t r
el

ie
ve

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

r 
th

e 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
, a

s 
th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e,

 o
f t

he
ir 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s.

 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
3

 

9



A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

 a
n

d
 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 

I w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

u
t 

th
e 

au
d

it
 o

f 
yo

u
r 

ac
co

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts
 in

 a
cc

o
rd

an
ce

 w
it

h
 In

te
rn

at
io

n
al

 
S

ta
n

d
ar

d
s 

o
n

 A
u

d
it

in
g

 (
U

K
 a

n
d

 Ir
el

an
d

) 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
).

 I 
am

 
re

q
u

ir
ed

 t
o

 is
su

e 
an

 a
u

d
it

 r
ep

o
rt

 g
iv

in
g

 m
y 

o
p

in
io

n
 o

n
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h

e 
ac

co
u

n
ts

 g
iv

e 
a 

tr
u

e 
an

d
 f

ai
r 

vi
ew

.

M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

I w
ill

 a
pp

ly
 th

e 
co

nc
ep

t o
f m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
in

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
m

y 
au

di
t, 

in
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

 o
f a

ny
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

m
is

st
at

em
en

ts
, a

nd
 in

 fo
rm

in
g 

m
y 

op
in

io
n.

 M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

ca
n 

be
 d

ef
in

ed
 a

s:
 

‘in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
ts

 o
m

is
si

on
 o

r 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t c

ou
ld

 in
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 o

f u
se

rs
 ta

ke
n 

on
 th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
. M

at
er

ia
lit

y 
de

pe
nd

s 
on

 th
e 

si
ze

 o
f t

he
 it

em
 o

r 
er

ro
r 

ju
dg

ed
 in

 th
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
 c

irc
um

st
an

ce
s 

of
 it

s 
om

is
si

on
 o

r 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t’.

 

Id
en

ti
fy

in
g

 a
u

d
it

 r
is

ks
  

A
ud

iti
ng

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 r

eq
ui

re
 m

e 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

id
en

tif
y 

an
y 

ris
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t (

w
he

th
er

 d
ue

 to
 fr

au
d 

or
 e

rr
or

) 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. I
 d

o 
th

is
 b

y:
 

 
 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 y

ou
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

 r
is

ks
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
ss

es
si

ng
 y

ou
r 

ow
n 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

; 
 

 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
yo

ur
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
;  

 
 

as
se

ss
in

g 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tr

ol
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

th
e 

co
nt

ro
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

t, 
th

e 
IT

 c
on

tr
ol

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t a

nd
 in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
it;

 a
nd

  
 

 
as

se
ss

in
g 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 m

at
er

ia
l m

is
st

at
em

en
t a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 a

nd
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

w
ith

in
 y

ou
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s.

 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
4

 

10



Id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

si
g

n
if

ic
an

t 
ri

sk
s

I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
is

ks
 th

at
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t t

o 
th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 h

av
e 

se
t t

he
se

 o
ut

 b
el

ow
.  

T
ab

le
 1

: 
S

ig
n

if
ic

an
t 

ri
sk

s 
 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

V
al

u
at

io
n

 o
f 

p
ro

p
er

ty
, p

la
n

t 
an

d
 e

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

(P
P

E
) 

Y
ou

 a
re

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 v
al

ue
 P

P
E

 a
t f

ai
r 

va
lu

e 
(w

ith
 s

om
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

ns
).

 
P

re
vi

ou
s 

au
di

ts
 h

av
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
as

se
t v

al
ua

tio
ns

 
ar

e 
ke

pt
 u

pd
at

ed
, a

re
 a

cc
ur

at
el

y 
an

d 
co

m
pl

et
el

y 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 y

ou
r 

po
lic

y 
fo

r 
ca

pi
ta

lis
at

io
n 

is
 c

on
si

st
en

tly
 a

pp
lie

d.
 T

he
 

qu
al

ity
 o

f s
om

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 

va
ria

bl
e.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
 r

is
k 

th
e 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 th

e 
fin

an
ci

al
 

st
at

em
en

ts
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

m
at

er
ia

lly
 m

is
st

at
ed

.  

I w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 y
ou

r 
co

nt
ro

ls
 o

ve
r 

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 v
al

ua
tio

ns
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
in

st
ru

ct
in

g 
yo

ur
 v

al
ue

r 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

ls
 o

ve
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
ov

id
ed

 to
 v

al
ue

r.
 

I w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
to

 a
ss

es
s 

w
he

th
er

 I 
ca

n 
pl

ac
e 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 th

e 
va

lu
er

. 

I w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 te

st
s 

of
 d

et
ai

l o
n 

va
lu

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
de

pr
ec

ia
tio

n 
ca

lc
ul

at
io

ns
.  

M
y 

te
am

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
lia

is
in

g 
w

ith
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 to

 h
el

p 
im

pr
ov

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 
ad

va
nc

e 
of

 c
lo

se
do

w
n.

  
 T

ab
le

 2
: 

S
p

ec
if

ic
 r

is
ks

 
 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

U
p

g
ra

d
e 

o
f 

th
e 

g
en

er
al

 le
d

g
er

 s
ys

te
m

.  

Y
ou

 u
pg

ra
de

d 
yo

ur
 g

en
er

al
 le

dg
er

 s
ys

te
m

 in
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
11

. T
he

re
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
so

m
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t. 

I w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 a

ny
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

ha
ve

 o
n 

co
nt

ro
ls

. I
 w

ill
 

se
ek

 to
 p

la
ce

 r
el

ia
nc

e 
on

 In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it’
s 

w
or

k 
on

 th
is

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

hi
s 

I w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
pr

og
re

ss
 in

 s
tr

en
gt

he
ni

ng
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

ov
er

 jo
ur

na
l a

ut
ho

ris
at

io
n.

 
  A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 

A
ud

it 
pl

an
 

5
 

11



 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

P
F

I a
ss

et
s

T
he

 w
as

te
 P

F
I a

ss
et

s 
ar

e 
ca

rr
ie

d 
at

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
, b

ut
 a

re
 n

ow
 

op
er

at
io

na
l. 

T
he

y 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

re
va

lu
ed

. T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

pl
an

s 
to

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 R

ea
di

ng
 B

or
ou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 
to

 r
ev

al
ue

 th
es

e 
in

 2
01

1/
12

. 

I w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 th
e 

re
va

lu
at

io
n.

 

R
el

at
ed

 p
ar

ty
 t

ra
n

sa
ct

io
n

s 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

im
pr

ov
ed

 it
s 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 fo
r 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 tr

an
sa

ct
io

ns
 in

 
20

10
/1

1,
 h

ow
ev

er
 n

in
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

M
em

be
rs

 d
id

 n
ot

 r
et

ur
n 

th
ei

r 
de

cl
ar

at
io

ns
.

I w
ill

 r
ev

ie
w

 y
ou

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 d

is
cl

os
ur

e 
in

 2
01

1/
12

 a
nd

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 

ad
di

tio
na

l w
or

k 
if 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y.
 

T
es

ti
n

g
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

 

M
y 

au
di

t i
nv

ol
ve

s:
 

 
 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 r

e-
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f w
or

k 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

yo
ur

 in
te

rn
al

 a
ud

ito
rs

; 
 

 
te

st
in

g 
of

 th
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 c
on

tr
ol

s;
  

 
 

re
lia

nc
e 

on
 th

e 
w

or
k 

of
 o

th
er

 a
ud

ito
rs

; 
 

 
re

lia
nc

e 
on

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 e
xp

er
ts

; a
nd

 
 

 
su

bs
ta

nt
iv

e 
te

st
s 

of
 d

et
ai

l o
f t

ra
ns

ac
tio

ns
 a

nd
 a

m
ou

nt
s.

 

I h
av

e 
so

ug
ht

 to
:  

 
 

m
ax

im
is

e 
re

lia
nc

e,
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
e-

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

, o
n 

th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 y
ou

r 
in

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

rs
; a

nd
 

 
 

m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
w

or
k 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

ef
or

e 
yo

u 
pr

ep
ar

e 
yo

ur
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

T
he

 n
at

ur
e 

an
d 

tim
in

g 
of

 m
y 

pr
op

os
ed

 w
or

k 
is

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s,

 o
ve

rle
af

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
6

 

12



T
ab

le
 3

: 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 w

o
rk

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

in
te

rn
al

 a
u

d
it

 
C

o
n

tr
o

ls
te

st
in

g
R

el
ia

n
ce

 o
n

 t
h

e 
w

o
rk

 o
f 

o
th

er
 

au
d

it
o

rs
R

el
ia

n
ce

 o
n

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
ex

p
er

ts
S

u
b

st
an

ti
ve

 t
es

ti
n

g
 

In
te

rim
 

vi
si

t 
P

ay
ro

ll 

C
re

di
to

rs
 

D
eb

to
rs

  

G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r 

 

C
as

h 
re

ce
ip

tin
g 

 

P
ay

ro
ll 

C
re

di
to

rs
 

D
eb

to
rs

  

G
en

er
al

 L
ed

ge
r 

C
as

h 
re

ce
ip

tin
g 

 
 

  

F
in

al
 

vi
si

t 
 

 
P

en
si

on
s 

as
se

ts
 a

nd
 li

ab
ili

tie
s 

– 
au

di
to

r 
to

 B
er

ks
hi

re
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

P
en

si
on

s 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

as
se

ts
 –

 B
ar

ne
tt 

W
ad

di
ng

ha
m

 a
nd

 o
ur

 o
w

n 
co

ns
ul

tin
g 

ac
tu

ar
y 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 p
ro

pe
rt

y,
 p

la
nt

 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t –

 P
rin

ci
pa

l 
S

ur
ve

yo
r 

 

V
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 P
F

I s
ch

em
e 

– 
to

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
. 

A
ll 

m
at

er
ia

l a
cc

ou
nt

s 
ba

la
nc

es
 

an
d 

am
ou

nt
s 

 

Y
ea

r-
en

d 
fe

ed
er

 s
ys

te
m

 
re

co
nc

ili
at

io
ns

 

I w
ill

 a
gr

ee
 w

ith
 y

ou
 a

 s
ch

ed
ul

e 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
en

tr
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

.  

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts
 

A
lo

ng
si

de
 m

y 
w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
, I

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l A

ud
it 

O
ffi

ce
 o

n 
yo

ur
 W

ho
le

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

tu
rn

. T
he

 e
xt

en
t o

f m
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f m

y 
re

po
rt

 a
re

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

N
at

io
na

l A
ud

it 
O

ffi
ce

. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
7

 

13



V
al

u
e 

fo
r 

m
o

n
ey

I a
m

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 t

o
 r

ea
ch

 a
 c

o
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
ar

ra
n

g
em

en
ts

 t
o

 s
ec

u
re

 e
co

n
o

m
y,

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
cy

 a
n

d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s.

M
y 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
tw

o 
cr

ite
ria

, s
pe

ci
fie

d 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

. T
he

se
 r

el
at

e 
to

 y
ou

r 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r:
 

 
 

se
cu

rin
g 

fin
an

ci
al

 r
es

ili
en

ce
 –

 fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

w
he

th
er

 y
ou

 a
re

 m
an

ag
in

g 
yo

ur
 fi

na
nc

ia
l r

is
ks

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
a 

st
ab

le
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 fo

r 
th

e 
fo

re
se

ea
bl

e 
fu

tu
re

; a
nd

 
 

 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ho

w
 y

ou
 s

ec
ur

e 
ec

on
om

y,
 e

ffi
ci

en
cy

 a
nd

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
– 

fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

w
he

th
er

 y
ou

 a
re

 p
rio

rit
is

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 ti
gh

te
r 

bu
dg

et
s 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
pr

od
uc

tiv
ity

 a
nd

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
. 

Id
en

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

sp
ec

if
ic

 r
is

ks

I h
av

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
e 

ris
ks

 th
at

 a
re

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

m
y 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 c
on

cl
us

io
n.

 I 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ris

ks
 th

at
 I 

w
ill

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
y 

w
or

k.
 

T
ab

le
 4

: 
S

p
ec

if
ic

 r
is

ks
 

 

R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

S
ep

ar
at

e 
au

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

t?
 

T
he

 m
ai

n 
ris

k 
to

 fi
na

nc
ia

l r
es

ili
en

ce
 is

 th
e 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
of

 a
ch

ie
vi

ng
 a

 b
al

an
ce

d 
bu

dg
et

 
ov

er
 th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 w

ith
 r

ed
uc

ed
 fu

nd
in

g.

Y
ou

 n
ee

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

 e
m

ph
as

is
 o

n 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

po
lic

y 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
lo

ng
er

-t
er

m
 

sa
vi

ng
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 to
 s

hi
ft 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 r

ou
nd

 o
f t

ar
ge

ts
 to

 
ba

la
nc

e 
th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
bu

dg
et

. 

I w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
yo

ur
 m

ed
iu

m
 te

rm
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

la
ns

 
an

d 
ho

w
 y

ou
 p

la
n 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
ris

ks
 y

ou
 

fa
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 ta

ki
ng

 o
n 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

fo
r 

pu
bl

ic
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

fin
an

ce
 s

ys
te

m
. I

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 r

ev
ie

w
 y

ou
r 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 c

lo
si

ng
 th

e 
lo

ng
 te

rm
 b

ud
ge

t g
ap

. 

T
o 

be
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

an
d 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 a

ud
it 

le
tte

r 
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
8

 

14



R
is

k
A

u
d

it
 r

es
p

o
n

se
 

S
ep

ar
at

e 
au

d
it

 o
u

tp
u

t?
 

Y
ou

 a
re

 a
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
ar

tn
er

 in
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 r
ed

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

I h
av

e 
m

ad
e 

no
 s

pe
ci

fic
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

a 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

th
e 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

ns
. I

f t
he

se
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
ly

 I 
w

ill
 u

pd
at

e 
m

y 
ris

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t a
nd

 
di

sc
us

s 
an

y 
fe

e 
im

pa
ct

 w
ith

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 T
re

as
ur

er
.

T
o 

be
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

re
po

rt
 

an
d 

th
e 

an
nu

al
 a

ud
it 

le
tte

r 
if 

re
qu

ire
d.

  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
9

 

15



K
ey

 m
ile

st
o

n
es

 a
n

d
 d

ea
d

lin
es

 
T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 p
re

pa
re

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
y 

30
 J

un
e 

20
12

. I
 a

im
 to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
m

y 
w

or
k 

an
d 

is
su

e 
m

y 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 

co
nc

lu
si

on
 b

y 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

.  

T
ab

le
 5

: 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 t

im
et

ab
le

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
ed

 o
u

tp
u

ts
 

 

A
ct

iv
it

y 
D

at
e

O
u

tp
u

t

A
ud

it 
pl

an
  

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
12

 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 

O
pi

ni
on

: c
on

tr
ol

s 
an

d 
ea

rly
 s

ub
st

an
tiv

e 
te

st
in

g 
F

eb
ru

ar
y/

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 if

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
  

O
pi

ni
on

: r
ec

ei
pt

 o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
w

or
ki

ng
 p

ap
er

s 
B

y 
30

 J
un

e 
20

12
 

n/
a 

O
pi

ni
on

: s
ub

st
an

tiv
e 

te
st

in
g 

Ju
ly

 to
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

2 
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 

V
al

ue
 fo

r 
m

on
ey

  
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

to
 A

ug
us

t 2
01

2 
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 

P
re

se
nt

 a
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 a
t t

he
 G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
an

d 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

25
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

12
 

A
nn

ua
l g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
re

po
rt

 

Is
su

e 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 c

on
cl

us
io

n 
B

y 
30

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
12

 
A

ud
ito

r’s
 r

ep
or

t  

S
um

m
ar

is
e 

ov
er

al
l m

es
sa

ge
s 

fr
om

 th
e 

au
di

t 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
2 

A
nn

ua
l a

ud
it 

le
tte

r 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
10

 

16



T
h

e 
au

d
it

 t
ea

m
 

T
he

 k
ey

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 fo
r 

th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

au
di

t a
re

 a
s 

fo
llo

w
s.

 

T
ab

le
 6

: 
A

u
d

it
 t

ea
m

 
 

N
am

e
C

o
n

ta
ct

 d
et

ai
ls

 
R

es
p

o
n

si
b

ili
ti

es

H
el

en
 T

ho
m

ps
on

  

D
is

tr
ic

t A
ud

ito
r 

 

he
le

n-
th

om
ps

on
@

au
di

t-
co

m
m

is
si

on
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

08
44

 7
98

 1
79

0/
07

97
4 

00
73

32
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 r

ep
or

ts
, s

ig
ni

ng
 th

e 
au

di
to

r’s
 r

ep
or

t a
nd

 li
ai

so
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
hi

ef
 

E
xe

cu
tiv

e.
  

C
at

he
rin

e 
M

or
ga

nt
i  

A
ud

it 
M

an
ag

er
 

c-
m

or
ga

nt
i@

au
di

t-
co

m
m

is
si

on
.g

ov
.u

k 
 

07
77

9 
57

64
14

 

M
an

ag
es

 a
nd

 c
oo

rd
in

at
es

 th
e 

di
ffe

re
nt

 e
le

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
w

or
k.

 K
ey

 p
oi

nt
 o

f c
on

ta
ct

 fo
r 

th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 T
re

as
ur

er
. 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
11

 

17



In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 q
u

al
it

y 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 

I c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

et
hi

ca
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

P
B

 a
nd

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

nd
 o

bj
ec

tiv
ity

 a
s 

su
m

m
ar

is
ed

 in
 a

pp
en

di
x 

1.
 

In
 2

01
0/

11
 P

hi
l S

ha
rm

an
 in

fo
rm

ed
 y

ou
 th

at
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

M
an

ag
er

 fo
r 

th
e 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t i

s 
a 

fr
ie

nd
 o

f a
 D

ire
ct

or
 o

f a
 c

om
pa

ny
 w

ho
 h

ad
 o

ve
rs

ee
n 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 a
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

ys
te

m
 a

t t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 th

at
 y

ea
r.

 S
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

w
er

e 
pu

t i
n 

pl
ac

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
hi

s 
sy

st
em

 w
as

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 

by
 o

th
er

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 te

am
. T

he
 s

ys
te

m
 h

as
 n

ow
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

th
er

ef
or

e 
no

 fu
rt

he
r 

sa
fe

gu
ar

ds
 a

re
 r

eq
ui

re
d.

 I 
am

 n
ot

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 a

ny
 fu

rt
he

r 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 th

at
 m

ay
 a

ffe
ct

 th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 o
r 

m
e,

 th
at

 I 
am

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
by

 a
ud

iti
ng

 a
nd

 e
th

ic
al

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

to
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

yo
u.

  

Q
u

al
it

y 
o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 

I a
im

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 y

ou
 w

ith
 a

 fu
lly

 s
at

is
fa

ct
or

y 
au

di
t s

er
vi

ce
. I

f, 
ho

w
ev

er
, y

ou
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 d
ea

l w
ith

 a
ny

 d
iff

ic
ul

ty
 th

ro
ug

h 
m

e 
an

d 
m

y 
te

am
 p

le
as

e 
co

nt
ac

t 
C

hr
is

 W
es

tw
oo

d,
 D

ire
ct

or
 –

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 &

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e,
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

, 1
st

 F
lo

or
, M

ill
ba

nk
 T

ow
er

, M
ill

ba
nk

, L
on

do
n 

S
W

1P
 4

H
Q

  
( c

-w
es

tw
oo

d@
au

di
t-

co
m

m
is

si
on

.g
ov

.u
k)

 w
ho

 w
ill

 lo
ok

 in
to

 a
ny

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
 p

ro
m

pt
ly

 a
nd

 d
o 

w
ha

t h
e 

ca
n 

to
 r

es
ol

ve
 th

e 
po

si
tio

n.
  

If 
yo

u 
ar

e 
st

ill
 n

ot
 s

at
is

fie
d 

yo
u 

m
ay

 o
f c

ou
rs

e 
ta

ke
 u

p 
th

e 
m

at
te

r 
w

ith
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

O
ffi

ce
r 

(T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
, 

W
es

tw
ar

d 
H

ou
se

, L
im

e 
K

iln
 C

lo
se

, S
to

ke
 G

iff
or

d,
 B

ris
to

l B
S

34
 8

S
R

).
 

   A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
12

 

18



F
ee

s
T

h
e 

fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
d

it
 is

 £
23

0,
94

0 
as

 s
et

 o
u

t 
in

 P
h

il 
S

h
ar

m
an

’s
 le

tt
er

 o
f 

4 
M

ar
ch

 2
01

1.
 

T
h

e 
au

d
it

 f
ee

 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 h

as
 s

et
 a

 s
ca

le
 a

ud
it 

fe
e 

of
 £

23
0,

94
0 

w
hi

ch
 r

ep
re

se
nt

s 
a 

10
 p

er
 c

en
t r

ed
uc

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
au

di
t f

ee
 fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
  

T
he

 s
ca

le
 fe

e 
co

ve
rs

:  
 

 
m

y 
au

di
t o

f y
ou

r 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
W

ho
le

 o
f G

ov
er

nm
en

t A
cc

ou
nt

s 
re

tu
rn

; a
nd

  
 

 
m

y 
w

or
k 

on
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
yo

ur
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 fo
r 

se
cu

rin
g 

ec
on

om
y,

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

in
 y

ou
r 

us
e 

of
 r

es
ou

rc
es

.  

T
he

 s
ca

le
 fe

e 
re

fle
ct

s:
 

 
 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 d
ec

is
io

n 
no

t t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 fe
es

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 in

fla
tio

n;
  

 
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

re
su

lti
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

ne
w

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 lo
ca

l V
F

M
 a

ud
it 

w
or

k;
 a

nd
  

 
 

a 
re

du
ct

io
n 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
on

e-
of

f w
or

k 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

fir
st

-t
im

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l F
in

an
ci

ng
 R

ep
or

tin
g 

S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (

IF
R

S
).

  

V
ar

ia
tio

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
sc

al
e 

fe
e 

on
ly

 o
cc

ur
 w

he
re

 m
y 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 o
f a

ud
it 

ris
k 

an
d 

co
m

pl
ex

ity
 a

re
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

tly
 d

iff
er

en
t f

ro
m

 th
os

e 
re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

20
10

/1
1 

fe
e.

 I 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 d

iff
er

en
ce

s 
an

d 
ha

ve
 th

er
ef

or
e 

se
t t

he
 fe

e 
eq

ua
l t

o 
th

e 
sc

al
e 

fe
e.

 

A
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s

In
 s

et
tin

g 
th

e 
fe

e,
 I 

ha
ve

 m
ad

e 
th

e 
as

su
m

pt
io

ns
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 a
pp

en
di

x 
2.

 W
he

re
 th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
et

, I
 m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 m

or
e 

w
or

k 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

au
di

t f
ee

. W
he

re
 th

is
 is

 th
e 

ca
se

, I
 w

ill
 d

is
cu

ss
 th

is
 fi

rs
t w

ith
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 T

re
as

ur
er

 a
nd

 I 
w

ill
 is

su
e 

a 
su

pp
le

m
en

t t
o 

th
e 

pl
an

 to
 r

ec
or

d 
an

y 
re

vi
si

on
s 

to
 th

e 
ris

k 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

fe
e.

 

S
p

ec
if

ic
 a

ct
io

n
s 

yo
u

 c
o

u
ld

 t
ak

e 
to

 r
ed

u
ce

 y
o

u
r 

au
d

it
 f

ee
 

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 r

eq
ui

re
s 

m
e 

to
 in

fo
rm

 y
ou

 o
f s

pe
ci

fic
 a

ct
io

ns
 y

ou
 c

ou
ld

 ta
ke

 to
 r

ed
uc

e 
yo

ur
 a

ud
it 

fe
e.

 I 
w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 y
ou

 o
f a

ny
 a

ct
io

ns
 I 

id
en

tif
y.

  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
13

 

19



T
o

ta
l f

ee
s 

p
ay

ab
le

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

fe
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t, 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
ill

 c
ha

rg
e 

fe
es

 fo
r:

 
 

 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
tio

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s;

 a
nd

 
 

 
th

e 
ag

re
ed

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f n
on

-a
ud

it 
se

rv
ic

es
 u

nd
er

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 a
dv

ic
e 

an
d 

as
si

st
an

ce
 p

ow
er

s.
  

B
as

ed
 o

n 
cu

rr
en

t p
la

ns
 th

e 
fe

es
 p

ay
ab

le
 a

re
 a

s 
fo

llo
w

s.
 

T
ab

le
 7

: 
F

ee
s

 

20
11

/1
2 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 
20

10
/1

1 
ac

tu
al

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

A
ud

it 
£2

30
,9

40
 

£2
56

,6
00

- 
£2

5,
66

0 

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 c
la

im
s 

an
d 

re
tu

rn
s 

£6
0,

00
0 

£7
7,

50
0

- 
£1

7,
50

0 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

0 
£2

,5
00

- 
£2

,5
00

 

T
o

ta
l

£2
90

,9
40

£3
36

,6
00

£4
5,

66
0

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
14

 

20



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 1
 –

 In
d

ep
en

d
en

ce
 a

n
d

 
o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 m
us

t c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 C

od
e 

of
 A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d 
S

ta
nd

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
fo

r 
A

ud
ito

rs
. W

he
n 

au
di

tin
g 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, a
ud

ito
rs

 m
us

t a
ls

o 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 is
su

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
iti

ng
 P

ra
ct

ic
es

 B
oa

rd
 (

A
P

B
).

 T
he

se
 

im
po

se
 s

tr
in

ge
nt

 r
ul

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

ity
 o

f a
ud

ito
rs

. T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

pu
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

 r
ob

us
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

es
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, o
ve

rs
ee

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e’

s 
D

ire
ct

or
 –

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 a

nd
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

, w
ho

 s
er

ve
s 

as
 th

e 
A

ud
it 

P
ra

ct
ic

e’
s 

E
th

ic
s 

P
ar

tn
er

. 

T
ab

le
 8

: 
In

d
ep

en
d

en
ce

 a
n

d
 o

b
je

ct
iv

it
y 

 

A
re

a
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

H
o

w
 w

e 
co

m
p

ly
 

B
us

in
es

s,
 e

m
pl

oy
m

en
t a

nd
 

pe
rs

on
al

 r
el

at
io

ns
hi

ps
 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

st
af

f s
ho

ul
d 

av
oi

d 
an

y 
of

fic
ia

l, 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 o

r 
pe

rs
on

al
 r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
, o

r 
co

ul
d 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 b

e 
pe

rc
ei

ve
d 

to
, c

au
se

 th
em

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
 o

r 
un

ju
st

ifi
ab

ly
 to

 li
m

it 
th

e 
sc

op
e,

 e
xt

en
t o

r 
rig

ou
r 

of
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
or

 
im

pa
ir 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

ity
 o

f t
he

ir 
ju

dg
em

en
t. 

 

T
he

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
se

ni
or

 m
em

be
rs

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
it 

te
am

 m
us

t 
no

t t
ak

e 
pa

rt
 in

 p
ol

iti
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 fo
r 

a 
po

lit
ic

al
 p

ar
ty

, o
r 

sp
ec

ia
l 

in
te

re
st

 g
ro

up
, w

ho
se

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 r

el
at

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 to

 th
e 

fu
nc

tio
ns

 o
f 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t o

r 
N

H
S

 b
od

ie
s 

in
 g

en
er

al
, o

r 
to

 a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 lo
ca

l 
go

ve
rn

m
en

t o
r 

N
H

S
 b

od
y.

  

A
ll 

au
di

t s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ll 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
th

re
at

s 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

. D
et

ai
ls

 o
f d

ec
la

ra
tio

ns
 

ar
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
rs

. W
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, s

ta
ff 

ar
e 

ex
cl

ud
ed

 fr
om

 e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

 
or

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
s 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
th

re
at

 to
 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 to
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
ly

 lo
w

 le
ve

l. 
 

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
15

 

21



 

A
re

a
R

eq
u

ir
em

en
t 

H
o

w
 w

e 
co

m
p

ly
 

Lo
ng

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
ud

it 
cl

ie
nt

s 
T

he
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 a
ud

ito
r 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

au
di

t s
ho

ul
d,

 in
 a

ll 
bu

t 
th

e 
m

os
t e

xc
ep

tio
na

l c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s,
 b

e 
ch

an
ge

d 
at

 le
as

t o
nc

e 
ev

er
y 

se
ve

n 
ye

ar
s,

 w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

re
at

s 
to

 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 a

fte
r 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

s.
  

T
he

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

m
ai

nt
ai

ns
 a

nd
 m

on
ito

rs
 a

 
ce

nt
ra

l d
at

ab
as

e 
of

 a
ss

ig
nm

en
t o

f a
ud

ito
rs

 a
nd

 
se

ni
or

 a
ud

it 
st

af
f t

o 
en

su
re

 th
is

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t i
s 

m
et

. 

G
ift

s 
an

d 
ho

sp
ita

lit
y 

T
he

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

r 
an

d 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 a
ud

it 
te

am
 m

us
t a

bi
de

 
by

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

’s
 p

ol
ic

y 
on

 g
ift

s,
 h

os
pi

ta
lit

y 
an

d 
en

te
rt

ai
nm

en
t. 

A
ll 

au
di

t s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
ec

la
re

 a
ny

 g
ift

s 
or

 
ho

sp
ita

lit
y 

irr
es

pe
ct

iv
e 

of
 w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t t
he

y 
ar

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
. G

ift
s 

an
d 

H
os

pi
ta

lit
y 

m
ay

 o
nl

y 
be

 
ac

ce
pt

ed
 w

ith
 li

ne
 m

an
ag

er
 a

pp
ro

va
l. 

 

N
on

-a
ud

it 
w

or
k 

A
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 s

ho
ul

d 
no

t p
er

fo
rm

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

fo
r 

an
 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

 (
th

at
 is

 w
or

k 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

m
in

im
um

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
th

ei
r 

st
at

ut
or

y 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s)
 if

 it
 w

ou
ld

 c
om

pr
om

is
e 

th
ei

r 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 o

r 
m

ig
ht

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
a 

re
as

on
ab

le
 p

er
ce

pt
io

n 
th

at
 th

ei
r 

in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
. 

A
ud

ito
rs

 s
ho

ul
d 

no
t a

cc
ep

t e
ng

ag
em

en
ts

 th
at

 in
vo

lv
e 

co
m

m
en

tin
g 

on
 th

e 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 o

f o
th

er
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 o
n 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 w
or

k 
w

ith
ou

t f
irs

t c
on

su
lti

ng
 th

e 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

W
or

k 
ov

er
 a

 s
pe

ci
fie

d 
va

lu
e 

m
us

t o
nl

y 
be

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
io

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
’s

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f A

ud
it 

P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n.

  

A
ll 

pr
op

os
ed

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 w

or
k 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 r
ev

ie
w

 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
th

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

au
di

to
r 

an
d 

th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 –
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 T
ec

hn
ic

al
, t

o 
en

su
re

 
th

at
 in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 is

 n
ot

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e,

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 S

ta
nd

in
g 

G
ui

da
nc

e 
an

d 
A

P
B

 E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
16

 

22



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 2
 –

 B
as

is
 f

o
r 

fe
e 

 
 

 
In

 s
et

tin
g 

th
e 

fe
e,

 I 
ha

ve
 a

ss
um

ed
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g.

 
 

 
T

he
 r

is
k 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 is

 n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 d
iff

er
en

t t
o 

th
at

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e:

 
 

in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

s 
ar

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y;

 a
nd

  
 

I s
ec

ur
e 

th
e 

co
-o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 o

th
er

 a
ud

ito
rs

.  
 

 
T

he
 r

is
k 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 m

y 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
is

 n
ot

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 d
iff

er
en

t t
o 

th
at

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r 
20

10
/1

1.
 

 
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
m

ee
ts

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l s
ta

nd
ar

ds
. 

 
 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
un

de
rt

ak
es

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 w

or
k 

on
 a

ll 
sy

st
em

s 
th

at
 p

ro
vi

de
 m

at
er

ia
l f

ig
ur

es
 in

 th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
n 

w
hi

ch
 I 

ca
n 

re
ly

 b
y 

ag
re

ed
 ti

m
es

ca
le

s.
 

 
 

T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

pr
ov

id
es

:  
 

go
od

 q
ua

lit
y 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ap

er
s 

an
d 

re
co

rd
s 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

xt
 o

f t
he

 o
th

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

at
em

en
ts

 b
y 

30
 J

un
e;

  
 

ot
he

r 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
es

te
d 

w
ith

in
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s;

 a
nd

 
 

pr
om

pt
 r

es
po

ns
es

 to
 d

ra
ft 

re
po

rt
s.

  
 

 
T

he
re

 a
re

 n
o 

qu
es

tio
ns

 a
sk

ed
 o

r 
ob

je
ct

io
ns

 m
ad

e 
by

 lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t e

le
ct

or
s.

 

W
he

re
 th

es
e 

as
su

m
pt

io
ns

 a
re

 n
ot

 m
et

, I
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 m
or

e 
w

or
k 

w
hi

ch
 is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
an

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
au

di
t f

ee
.  

  A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
17

 

23



A
p

p
en

d
ix

 3
 –

 G
lo

ss
ar

y
A

cc
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 s

ta
te

m
en

ts

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l s

ta
te

m
en

t o
f a

cc
ou

nt
s 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 p

re
pa

re
, w

hi
ch

 r
ep

or
t t

he
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 fi

na
nc

ia
l p

os
iti

on
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
A

cc
ou

nt
s 

an
d 

A
ud

it 
(E

ng
la

nd
) 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 2
01

1 
an

d 
th

e 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

on
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
A

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
in

 th
e 

U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

. 

A
n

n
u

al
 A

u
d

it
 L

et
te

r 
 

R
ep

or
t i

ss
ue

d 
by

 th
e 

au
di

to
r 

to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
af

te
r 

th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t t

ha
t s

um
m

ar
is

es
 th

e 
au

di
t w

or
k 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t i

n 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

an
d 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 

is
su

es
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 a

ud
ito

rs
’ w

or
k.

  

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 R

ep
o

rt
 

T
he

 a
ud

ito
r’s

 r
ep

or
t o

n 
m

at
te

rs
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
au

di
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 p

re
se

nt
ed

 to
 th

os
e 

ch
ar

ge
d 

w
ith

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
au

di
to

r 
is

su
es

 th
ei

r 
op

in
io

n 
an

d 
co

nc
lu

si
on

. 

A
n

n
u

al
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

t 

T
he

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t o
n 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
sy

st
em

s 
of

 in
te

rn
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 th
at

 s
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
ac

hi
ev

em
en

t o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

po
lic

ie
s 

ai
m

s 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

.

A
u

d
it

 o
f 

th
e 

ac
co

u
n

ts

T
he

 a
ud

it 
of

 th
e 

ac
co

un
ts

 o
f a

n 
au

di
te

d 
bo

dy
 c

om
pr

is
es

 a
ll 

w
or

k 
ca

rr
ie

d 
ou

t b
y 

an
 a

ud
ito

r 
un

de
r 

th
e 

C
od

e 
to

 m
ee

t t
he

ir 
st

at
ut

or
y 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

un
de

r 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 A
ct

 1
99

8.
  

A
u

d
it

ed
 b

o
d

y 
 

A
 b

od
y 

to
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 fo
r 

ap
po

in
tin

g 
th

e 
ex

te
rn

al
 a

ud
ito

r.
 

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
18

 

24



A
u

d
it

in
g

 P
ra

ct
ic

es
 B

o
ar

d
 (

A
P

B
)

T
he

 b
od

y 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

U
K

 fo
r 

is
su

in
g 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

s,
 e

th
ic

al
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

gu
id

an
ce

 to
 a

ud
ito

rs
. I

ts
 o

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
re

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

hi
gh

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f a
ud

iti
ng

 th
at

 m
ee

t t
he

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
of

 u
se

rs
 o

f f
in

an
ci

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
an

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pu
bl

ic
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 th

e 
au

di
tin

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
  

A
u

d
it

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 a
nd

 e
ss

en
tia

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s 

w
ith

 w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 

th
e 

au
di

tin
g 

st
an

da
rd

 c
on

ce
rn

ed
.  

A
u

d
it

o
r(

s)

A
ud

ito
rs

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

.  

C
o

d
e 

(t
h

e)

T
he

 C
od

e 
of

 A
ud

it 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

fo
r 

lo
ca

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t b

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 a

pp
ro

ve
d 

by
 P

ar
lia

m
en

t. 
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 (
th

e)

T
he

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 fo

r 
Lo

ca
l A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
N

at
io

na
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 in
 E

ng
la

nd
.  

E
th

ic
al

 S
ta

n
d

ar
d

s

P
ro

no
un

ce
m

en
ts

 o
f t

he
 A

P
B

 th
at

 c
on

ta
in

 b
as

ic
 p

rin
ci

pl
es

 r
el

at
in

g 
to

 in
de

pe
nd

en
ce

, i
nt

eg
rit

y 
an

d 
ob

je
ct

iv
ity

 th
at

 a
pp

ly
 to

 th
e 

co
nd

uc
t o

f a
ud

its
 a

nd
 w

ith
 

w
hi

ch
 a

ud
ito

rs
 m

us
t c

om
pl

y,
 e

xc
ep

t w
he

re
 o

th
er

w
is

e 
st

at
ed

 in
 th

e 
st

an
da

rd
 c

on
ce

rn
ed

.  

G
ro

u
p

 a
cc

o
u

n
ts

  

C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 o

f a
n 

A
ut

ho
rit

y 
an

d 
its

 s
ub

si
di

ar
ie

s,
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

s 
an

d 
jo

in
tly

 c
on

tr
ol

le
d 

en
tit

ie
s.

 

In
te

rn
al

 c
o

n
tr

o
l

T
he

 w
ho

le
 s

ys
te

m
 o

f c
on

tr
ol

s,
 fi

na
nc

ia
l a

nd
 o

th
er

w
is

e,
 th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
es

ta
bl

is
he

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 r
ea

so
na

bl
e 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
of

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 

op
er

at
io

ns
, i

nt
er

na
l f

in
an

ci
al

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 la
w

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

.  

 A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
19

 

25



M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

 

T
he

 A
P

B
 d

ef
in

es
 th

is
 c

on
ce

pt
 a

s 
‘a

n 
ex

pr
es

si
on

 o
f t

he
 r

el
at

iv
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

or
 im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f a

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 m

at
te

r 
in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f t
he

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. A

 m
at

te
r 

is
 m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
ts

 o
m

is
si

on
 w

ou
ld

 r
ea

so
na

bl
y 

in
flu

en
ce

 th
e 

de
ci

si
on

s 
of

 a
n 

ad
dr

es
se

e 
of

 th
e 

au
di

to
r’s

 r
ep

or
t; 

lik
ew

is
e 

a 
m

is
st

at
em

en
t i

s 
m

at
er

ia
l i

f i
t w

ou
ld

 h
av

e 
a 

si
m

ila
r 

in
flu

en
ce

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

m
ay

 a
ls

o 
be

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f a

ny
 in

di
vi

du
al

 p
rim

ar
y 

st
at

em
en

t w
ith

in
 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

 o
r 

of
 in

di
vi

du
al

 it
em

s 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 th
em

. M
at

er
ia

lit
y 

is
 n

ot
 c

ap
ab

le
 o

f g
en

er
al

 m
at

he
m

at
ic

al
 d

ef
in

iti
on

, a
s 

it 
ha

s 
bo

th
 q

ua
lit

at
iv

e 
an

d 
qu

an
tit

at
iv

e 
as

pe
ct

s’
.  

T
he

 te
rm

 ‘m
at

er
ia

lit
y’

 a
pp

lie
s 

on
ly

 to
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

pp
oi

nt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 h
av

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
an

d 
du

tie
s 

un
de

r 
st

at
ut

e,
 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
th

ei
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

 g
iv

e 
an

 o
pi

ni
on

 o
n 

th
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

, w
hi

ch
 d

o 
no

t n
ec

es
sa

ril
y 

af
fe

ct
 th

ei
r 

op
in

io
n 

on
 th

e 
ac

co
un

tin
g 

st
at

em
en

ts
.  

S
ig

n
if

ic
an

ce

T
he

 c
on

ce
pt

 o
f ‘

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e’

 a
pp

lie
s 

to
 th

es
e 

w
id

er
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
au

di
to

rs
 a

do
pt

 a
 le

ve
l o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 th
at

 m
ay

 d
iff

er
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

at
er

ia
lit

y 
le

ve
l 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

ei
r 

au
di

t o
f t

he
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. S
ig

ni
fic

an
ce

 h
as

 b
ot

h 
qu

al
ita

tiv
e 

an
d 

qu
an

tit
at

iv
e 

as
pe

ct
s.

  

T
h

o
se

 c
h

ar
g

ed
 w

it
h

 g
o

ve
rn

an
ce

 

T
ho

se
 e

nt
ru

st
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n,

 c
on

tr
ol

 a
nd

 d
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il.

 T
hi

s 
te

rm
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

its
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 –

 th
e 

G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

an
d 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 

W
h

o
le

 o
f 

G
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
A

cc
o

u
n

ts

A
 p

ro
je

ct
 le

ad
in

g 
to

 a
 s

et
 o

f c
on

so
lid

at
ed

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
fo

r 
th

e 
en

tir
e 

U
K

 p
ub

lic
 s

ec
to

r 
on

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 a
cc

ou
nt

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
m

us
t s

ub
m

it 
a 

co
ns

ol
id

at
io

n 
pa

ck
 to

 th
e 

de
pa

rt
m

en
t f

or
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 L

oc
al

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t w

hi
ch

 is
 b

as
ed

 o
n,

 b
ut

 s
ep

ar
at

e 
fr

om
, i

ts
 a

cc
ou

nt
in

g 
st

at
em

en
ts

. 

    A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
A

ud
it 

pl
an

 
20

 

26



If 
yo

u 
re

qu
ire

 a
 c

op
y 

of
 th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t i

n 
an

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
 o

r 
in

 a
 la

ng
ua

ge
 o

th
er

 th
an

 E
ng

lis
h,

 p
le

as
e 

ca
ll:

  
08

44
 7

98
 7

07
0 

©
 A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 2
01

2.
 

D
es

ig
n 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
tio

n 
by

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 P

ub
lis

hi
ng

 T
ea

m
. 

Im
ag

e 
co

py
rig

ht
 ©

 A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
. 

 T
he

 S
ta

te
m

en
t o

f R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

tie
s 

of
 A

ud
ito

rs
 a

nd
 A

ud
ite

d 
B

od
ie

s 
is

su
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
ud

it 
C

om
m

is
si

on
 e

xp
la

in
s 

th
e 

re
sp

ec
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s 
of

 a
ud

ito
rs

 
an

d 
of

 th
e 

au
di

te
d 

bo
dy

. R
ep

or
ts

 p
re

pa
re

d 
by

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

ud
ito

rs
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

 to
 n

on
-e

xe
cu

tiv
e 

di
re

ct
or

s,
 m

em
be

rs
 o

r 
of

fic
er

s.
 T

he
y 

ar
e 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 fo
r 

th
e 

so
le

 u
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ud
ite

d 
bo

dy
. A

ud
ito

rs
 a

cc
ep

t n
o 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
to

: 
 

 
an

y 
di

re
ct

or
/m

em
be

r 
or

 o
ffi

ce
r 

in
 th

ei
r 

in
di

vi
du

al
 c

ap
ac

ity
; o

r 
 

 
 

an
y 

th
ird

 p
ar

ty
.  

            

 
 w

w
w

.a
u

d
it

-c
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

.g
o

v.
u

k
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ja

n
u

ar
y 

20
12

 

  

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 
 

 
TO: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE   

24TH JANUARY 2012 
 
 

UPDATE OF CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS ANNUAL REPORT: 
 HOUSING BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX SUBSIDY AND HOUSING BENEFIT 

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 2010/11 
 

Director of Environment, Culture and Communities 
 
 
1 PURPOSE OF DECISION 

 
1.1.  The purpose of this report is to provide Committee with an update on the progress 

the Housing and Council Tax Benefit Service has made since last reporting to 
Governance and Audit Committee in September 2011. 

 
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the current performance of the Housing and Council Tax Benefit Service 

be noted. 
 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
3.1. The Governance and Audit Committee considered a report on the Certification of 

Claims and Returns Annual Report: Housing Benefit and Council Tax Subsidy and 
Housing Benefit Internal Audit Report 2010/11 at its meeting on the 22nd March and 
the 28th June. It requested an update on progress against the Action Plans that were 
proposed in response to the audits be presented to the Committee at its meeting on 
the 29th September. The Governance and Audit Committee requested a further 
update at its meeting on the 24th January 2012. 

 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 There is no alternative to the proposed action.  
 
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
5.1. Progress against the recommendations made on the Certification of Claims and 

Returns Annual Report for 2009/10 began in the final quarter of 2010/11. Therefore, 
the impact of the Action Plan in response to recommendations may conceivably be 
limited in respect of the 2010/11 audit but it can be expected that the full impact will 
be found in the 2011/12 audit. 

 
5.2. The Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit Claim for year ended 31 March 2011 

qualification letter was submitted to the Department of Works and Pensions on the 
12th December 2011. It is fair to say that the qualification letter portrayed an improved 
picture from the previous submission. As matter of context it should be remembered 
that the financial year 2010/11 included the transition from the Pericles to the 

Agenda Item 6

29



Unrestricted 
 

Northgate system. In that financial year there were 26,133 units processed in total 
and a total of £35.9 million paid in benefit. 

 
5.3. The qualification letter found errors in expenditure misclassification, overpaid benefit/ 

miscalculation of weekly income and underpaid benefit where an incorrect start date 
was used for a claim. These errors crossed housing and council tax benefit. A report 
will be presented to Governance and Audit Committee by the Audit Commission on 
the certification of claims and returns at the March meeting. 

 
5.4. In this financial year the Benefit Service has been subject to three spot checks of 

assessment work, with testing being focussed on current cases, and an internal audit 
follow up of the previous internal audit report. A further audit of all the Action Plans 
stemming from the previous audits is currently taking place. The last spot check audit 
will take place in January 2012. A Northgate system post implementation audit 
reported in August and concluded that the findings were satisfactory and it made 
three priority three recommendations. 

 
 Certification Report and Action Plan and progress on 2009/10 certification 

claim audit 
 
5.5 The certification report and associated Action Plan have been provided with the 

previous reports and for the sake of brevity are not included with this report.  The 
following paragraphs provide a commentary on progress against the actions where 
an action had not satisfactorily concluded a recommendation. 

 
5.6 The Action Plan recommended urgent action to reduce the level of errors.. As was 

previously reported the accuracy rate for 2010/11 was 93% and 93% in 2009/10.  In 
2011/12 to date 15 % of claims have been checked. The accuracy rate for quality is 
currently running at 93 % but on an upward trajectory in this financial year following 
resolution of processing errors with staff.   Given the level of errors identified to date 
it will be difficult to achieve an accuracy rate for quality above 95% by year end. The 
speed of processing is currently at target at an average of 11 days. 

 
5.7 The Government subsidy system which finances housing and council tax benefit 

expenditure accounts for a level of error in processing in financial terms. A threshold 
is set at 0.48% of the total benefit paid. The Council does not lose any subsidy if the 
total value of local authority error does not exceed that threshold.  

 
5.8 From checking, any errors that lead to a loss of entitlement for a claimant are 

corrected.  Any changes in benefit entitlement or a claim is accompanied by a letter 
to the claimant explaining the change.  This refers claimants to the Council’s website 
for clarification and encourages them to phone if they have any questions. 

 
5.9 The Benefit Service management structure has been restructured and came into 

place from the 10th October. The new structure provides more management resource 
to check claims and management of assessment staff. Processing is now undertaken 
on an alphabetic split based on claimant names so that processing staff are more 
familiar with benefit customers and their requirements as well as ensuring a claim is 
assessed by the same member of staff from start to finish. This ensures ownership 
and accountability for processing work. 

 
5.10 There was a recommendation that all non-HRA rent rebate expenditure should be 

reviewed and re-classified where necessary.  This has been reviewed and the 
classification for 2010/11 is now consistent even after taking into account the change 
between the Pericles and Northgate systems.  The subsidy claim for 2010/11 found 

30



Unrestricted 
 

one property where the classification was incorrect although this had no impact on 
subsidy. The review of classification on the Northgate system has taken place and 
there is now a process in place between the Housing Options Service and Benefits to 
ensure the correct classification is used. 

 
5.11 Recommendation 4 concerned action to reduce the number of errors calculating 

earnings. At the time of writing the previous report to the Governance and Audit 
Committee in September the results of the spot check was awaited. The spot check 
sampled 28 cases at random in the week commencing 15/8/11. The following 
observations were made. In one Council Tax Benefit Claim the earnings figure was 
input at £524.00 where it should have been input at £524.40, this led to an 
overpayment of benefit of £0.06. For one rent allowance claim incorrect amounts of 
Child Benefit had been input but this did not impact on benefit entitlement as the 
applicable amount exceeded income. There were two recommendations, 

 
• There were three cases where claims were assessed correctly but the software 

had generated errors. It was recommended that after the software fix was 
implemented in February 2012 the three cases are rechecked to ensure the fix 
has rectified the errors. 

 
• It was recommended that checking of cases focused on non-income support 

cases where the scope for error is greatest. If the target level of checks in terms 
of percentage was applied to non-income support cases this would reduce the 
overall level of checking.  The checking of claims now concentrates on claims 
where there is earned income and undertakes a higher percentage of checking 
of officers where quality falls below target. 

  
5.12 Recommendation 5 concerned the need to provide an audit trail on how decisions 

had been reached on benefit entitlement. Sample checking of work has taken place 
with staff to ensure the verification check list is completed. The number of verification 
checks not completed has reduced. So far this year out of claims checked there has 
been a satisfactory verification checklist in place for 99.12% of checked claims ( 11 
claims out of 1,245 checked did not have a VF checklist completed). This is picked 
up and addressed with staff at regular supervision meetings. 

 
  
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 Nothing to add to report. 
 
6.2. Borough Treasurer 

 
Annual accounts are closed within the department by the first week of May this 
includes a calculation of the subsidy due based on the classification and amount of 
allowances paid. 
 
Any subsequent qualification of the Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim by the District 
Auditor is therefore not reflected in the accounts and has to be reported through 
budget monitoring. 
 
As stated in the report the authority is aware that any errors in assessment must be 
kept to a minimum and measures are taken to achieve this in order to eliminate any 
over claims but also to maximise subsidy. 

31



Unrestricted 
 

 
The Department for Work and Pensions has the final decision whether to make any 
adjustments to the claim based on the auditor’s qualification letter and 
representations from the authority. 
 

 
 Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
6.3 An Equality Screening Form is included at the end of this report. 
 
 Strategic Risk Management Issues  
 
6.4 Failure to address the issues contained in the audit may result in the Council losing 

subsidy for the benefit payments it makes. This report has commented on the 
progress made in implementing the Action Plan to address those issues. 

 

7 CONSULTATION 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
7.1 Not applicable. 
 Method of Consultation 
7.2 Not applicable. 
 Representations Received 
7.3 Not applicable. 
 
 
Background Papers 
 
Certification of claims and returns annual report Bracknell Forest Council Audit 2009/10 
Housing and Council tax draft audit report March 2011 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Simon Hendey 
Chief Officer: Housing 
DD Telephone No. 01355 351879 
e-mail: simon-hendey@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Doc. Ref 

32



Unrestricted 
 

Equalities Screening Record Form 
 

Date of Screening: 10 June 2011 Directorate: ECC Section: Benefits 
1.  Activity to be assessed Certification of benefit subsidy claim and internal audit housing and council tax benefit part 2. 
2.  What is the activity?   Policy/strategy    Function/procedure     Project  x  Review     Service    Organisational change 
3.  Is it a new or existing activity?  New x Existing 
4.  Officer responsible for the screening Shanaz  Alam 
5.  Who are the members of the EIA team? Shanaz alam, Rosie Corah 
6.  What is the purpose of the activity? Action Plan to respond to audit findings 
7.  Who is the activity designed to benefit/target?  All benefit recipients 
8. a Racial equality - Is there an impact? 
What kind of equality impact may there be? 
Is the impact positive or adverse or is there a potential for 
both? If the impact is neutral please give a reason. 

Y  The proposed actions should improve service delivery to all benefit recipients  

8. b What evidence do you have to support this? 
E.g equality monitoring data, consultation results, customer 
satisfaction information  etc. 

Benefit customers are monitored on a regular basis  to assess take up of the benefit services. 

9. a Gender equality - Is there an impact? 
What kind of equality impact may there be? 
Is the impact positive or adverse or is there a potential for 
both?  If the impact is neutral please give a reason. 

Y  The proposed actions should improve service delivery to all benefit recipients. 

9. b What evidence do you have to support this? Benefit customers are monitored on a regular basis  to assess take up of the benefit services 
10. a Disability equality - Is there an impact? 
What kind of equality impact may there be? 
Is the impact positive or adverse or is there a potential for 
both?  If the impact is neutral please give a reason. 

Y  The proposed actions should improve service delivery to all benefit recipients 

10. b What evidence do you have to support this?  Benefit customers are monitored on a regular basis  to assess take up of the benefit services 

11. a Age equality - Is there an impact? 
What kind of equality impact may there be? 
Is the impact positive or adverse or is there a potential for 
both?  If the impact is neutral please give a reason. 

Y  . The proposed actions should improve service delivery to all benefit recipients 

11. b What evidence do you have to support this? 
 

Benefit customers are monitored on a regular basis  to assess take up of the benefit services 

12. a Religion and belief equality - Is there an impact? 
What kind of equality impact may there be? 
Is the impact positive or adverse or is there a potential for 
both?  If the impact is neutral please give a reason. 

Y  The proposed actions should improve service delivery to all benefit recipients 

33



Unrestricted 
 

12. b What evidence do you have to support this?  Benefit customers are monitored on a regular basis  to assess take up of the benefit services 
13. a Sexual orientation equality - Is there an impact? 
What kind of equality impact may there be? 
Is the impact positive or adverse or is there a potential for 
both? If the impact is neutral please give a reason. 

Y  The proposed actions should improve service delivery to all benefit recipients 

13. b What evidence do you have to support this? Benefit customers are monitored on a regular basis  to assess take up of the benefit services 
14. Please give details of any other potential impacts on 
any other group (e.g. those on lower incomes/carer’s/ex-
offenders) and on promoting good community relations. 

 The nature of the benefit service is that it is targeted at  low income and vulnerable households. 

15.  If an adverse/negative impact has been identified can 
it be justified on grounds of promoting equality of 
opportunity for one group or for any other reason? 

The service should generate a positive impact on those households. 

16. If there is any difference in the impact of the activity 
when considered for each of the equality groups listed in 
8 – 14 above; how significant is the difference in terms of 
its nature and the number of people likely to be affected? 

No 

17. Could the impact constitute unlawful discrimination in 
relation to any of the Equality Duties? 

 N  

18.  What further information or data is required to better 
understand the impact? Where and how can that 
information be obtained? 

Data collection on all equality groups who receive the benefit service will be improved during 2011/12.. 

19.  On the basis of sections 7 – 17 above is a full impact 
assessment required?   N The Action Plan proposed actions which will improve the general operation of the benefit 

administration system and there are no specific actins which are directed ay any specific group 
of benefit recipients.. 

20. If a full impact assessment is not required; what actions will you take to reduce or remove any potential differential/adverse impact, to further promote 
equality of opportunity through this activity or to obtain further information or data?  Please complete the Action Plan in full, adding more rows as needed. 

Action Timescale Person Responsible Milestone/Success Criteria 
Improve collection rate of equality monitoring information. 03/2012 Shanaz alam Improvement in the percentage  
    
    
21.  Which service, business or work plan will these actions be 
included in? 

Benefit service plan 

22. Have any current actions to address issues for any of the 
groups or examples of good practice been identified as part of 
the screening? 

None 

23. Chief Officers signature. Signature:                                                                                                  Date: 
24. Which PMR will this screening be reported in?  

34



Unrestricted 
 
When complete please send to abby.thomas@bracknell-forest.gov.uk for publication on the Council’s website.  

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



Unrestricted 
 
TO: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

24 JANUARY 2012 
 
 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 
(Borough Treasurer) 

 
 
1 PURPOSE OF DECISION 
 
1.1 To review the Treasury Management Report. 
 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee review the Treasury Management Report prior to its 

approval by Council.  
 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 
3.1 The Local Government Act 2003 requires a local authority to “have regard to” 

guidance issued by, or specified by, the Secretary of State.  As such, the Council is 
required to have regard to the Prudential Code and Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management in the Public Sector. The Code of Practice recommends that a 
responsible body be nominated by the Council and having examined and assessed 
the effectiveness of the treasury management strategy and policies recommend them 
to Council.  The Council has nominated the Governance and Audit Committee as the 
responsible body 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
4.1 None 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
5.1 The Local Government Act 2003 requires a local authority to “have regard to” 

guidance issued by, or specified by, the Secretary of State.  As such, the Council is 
required to have regard to the Prudential Code and Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management in the Public Sector, both issued by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). 

 
5.2 Under the requirements of the Prudential Code, the Council must set Prudential 

Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital investment 
plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  The attached Treasury Management 
Report outlines the Council’s Prudential Indicators for 2012/13 to 2014/15 and sets 
out the expected treasury operations for this period. 

 
5.3 The Code of Practice recommends that a responsible body be nominated by the 

Council and having examined and assessed the effectiveness of the treasury 
management strategy and policies recommend them to Council.  At its meeting on 2 

Agenda Item 7

37



Unrestricted 
 

March 2011 Council nominated the Governance and Audit Committee as the 
responsible body. 

 
5.4 The attached Treasury Management Report was approved by the Executive, as a 

part of the Council’s overall budget proposals, on 13 December 2011.  The Executive 
requested that the Governance and Audit Committee review each of the key 
elements.  Following this review the Treasury Management Report and associated 
documents will be presented to Council for approval on 29 February 2012, as a part 
of the overall budget package and resolution on the Council Tax for 2012/13. 

 
 
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 Nothing to add to the report. 
 
 Borough Treasurer 
 
6.2 Investment income is an integral part of the Council’s budget and the management of 

investments and their associated risk is a key element of the Council’s overall 
financial management arrangements.  The primary focus is on the security of the 
capital sum invested and this is reflected throughout the Treasury Management 
Report and associated documents. 

 
 Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
6.3 None required. 
 
 Strategic Risk Management Issues 
 
6.4 The Treasury Management Report deals directly with the strategic management of 

risk associated with the Council’s treasury management activities. 
 

7 CONSULTATION 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
7.1 The Overview & Scrutiny Commission will be consulted on the budget proposals 

which include the Treasury Management Strategy and may also choose to direct 
specific issues to individual overview and scrutiny panels.   

 Method of Consultation 
7.2 Targeted consultation exercises will be undertaken with business rate payers, the 

Senior Citizens’ Forum, the Schools Forum, Parish Councils and voluntary 
organisations.   In addition, this Strategy is publicly available to any individual or 
group who wish to comment on any proposal included within it.   

 Representations Received 
7.3 The Consultation Period remains open until 24th January 2012 
 
 

38



Unrestricted 
 
Background Papers 
 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Sector 
CIPFA Prudential Code 
Revenue Budget 2012/13 – Executive Report 13 December 2011 
 
 
Contact for further information 
 
Alan Nash – 01344 352180 
Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 Calvin Orr – 01344 352125 

Calvin.orr@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
 
 Doc. Ref 
 G:\Technical and Audit\Treasury Management\2012-13 Treasury Management Strategy\TM Report 

2012-13 - Governance & Audit Committee 240112.doc 
 

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex E 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT 

1.1 The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to “have regard to” the 
Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to ensure 
that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. 

1.2 This report outlines the Council’s prudential indicators for 2012/13 – 2014/15 and 
sets out the expected treasury operations for this period. It fulfils four key legislative 
requirements: 

• The reporting of the prudential indicators setting out the expected capital 
activities at Annex E(i) (as required by the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities).  

• The Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy at Annex E(ii), 
which sets out how the Council will pay for capital assets through revenue 
each year (as required by Regulation under the Local Government and 
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007); 

• The Treasury Management Strategy Statement which sets out how the 
Council’s treasury service will support the capital decisions taken above, the 
day to day treasury management and the limitations on activity through 
treasury prudential indicators. The key indicator is the Authorised Limit, the 
maximum amount of debt the Council could afford in the short term, but 
which would not be sustainable in the longer term. This is the Affordable 
Borrowing Limit required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and shown 
at Annex E(iii); 

• The Annual Investment Strategy which sets out the Council’s criteria for 
choosing investment counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss. 
This strategy is in accordance with the CLG Investment Guidance and is 
shown in Annex E(iv). 

41



Annex E(i) 

The Capital Prudential Indicators 2012/13 – 2014/15

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to adopt the CIPFA Prudential 
Code and produce prudential indicators.  Each indicator either summarises the 
expected capital activity or introduces limits upon that activity, and reflects the 
outcome of the Council’s underlying capital appraisal systems.   

Within this overall prudential framework there is an impact on the Council’s treasury 
management activity – as it will directly impact on borrowing or investment activity 
and as such the Treasury Management Strategy for 2012/13 to 2014/15 
complements these indicators.  Some of the prudential indicators are shown in the 
treasury management strategy to aid understanding. 

The Capital Expenditure Plans  
The Council’s capital expenditure plans are summarised below and this forms the 
first of the prudential indicators.    A certain level of capital expenditure is grant 
supported by the Government; any decisions by the Council to spend above this level 
will be considered unsupported capital expenditure.  This unsupported capital 
expenditure needs to have regard to: 

• Service objectives (e.g. strategic planning); 
• Stewardship of assets (e.g. asset management planning); 
• Value for money (e.g. option appraisal); 
• Prudence and sustainability (e.g. implications for external borrowing 

and whole life costing);   
• Affordability (e.g. implications for the council tax); 
• Practicality (e.g. the achievability of the forward plan). 

The revenue consequences of capital expenditure, particularly the unsupported 
capital expenditure, will need to be paid for from the Council’s own resources.   

This capital expenditure can be paid for immediately (by applying capital resources 
such as capital receipts, capital grants etc., or revenue resources), but if these 
resources are insufficient any residual capital expenditure will add to the Council’s 
borrowing need. 

The key risks to the plans are that the level of Government support has been 
estimated and is therefore maybe subject to change.  Similarly some estimates for 
other sources of funding, such as capital receipts, may also be subject to change 
over this timescale.  For instance anticipated asset sales may be postponed due to 
the impact of the recession on the property market, similarly the proceeds from the 
Right-to-Buy sharing agreement with Bracknell Forest Homes will also be impacted 
on by the wider economy. 

42



Annex E(i) 

The Council is asked to approve the summary capital expenditure projections below.  
This forms the first prudential indicator: 

Capital Expenditure 2012/13 
Estimate 

£000 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£000 

2014/15 
Estimate 

£000 
    
Capital Expenditure 22,430 11,628 13,793
Financed by: 
Capital receipts 3,000 3,000 3,000
Capital grants 12,945 3,045 3,815
Capital reserves 0 0 0
Revenue 0 0 0
Net financing need 
for the year 

6,485 5,583 6,978

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 
The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR).  The CFR is simply the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet 
been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.  It is essentially a measure of 
the Council’s underlying borrowing need.  The capital expenditure above which has 
not immediately been paid for will increase the CFR.  Due to the nature of some of 
the capital expenditure identified above (ie grant), an element will be immediately 
impaired or will not qualify as capital expenditure for CFR purposes. As such the net 
financing figure above may differ from that used in the CFR calculation. 

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund 
capital spend each year through a revenue charge (the Minimum Revenue Provision 
- MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments (VRP). 
No additional voluntary payments are planned. 

The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below: 

2012/13 
Estimate 

£000 

2013/14 
Estimate 

£000 

2014/15 
Estimate 

£000 
Capital Financing Requirement
Total CFR 37,098 39,471 41,270
Movement in CFR 2,373 1,799 1,799

Movement in CFR represented by
Net financing need 
for CFR purposes 

3,472 3,000 3,000

Less MRP/VRP and 
other financing 
movements 

1,009 1,201 1,201

Movement in CFR 2,373 1,799 1,799

CLG Regulations have been issued which require full Council to approve an MRP 
Statement in advance of each year.  The Council is recommended to approve the 
MRP Statement attached in Annex E(ii) 

43



Annex E(i) 

Affordability Prudential Indicators 
The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential 
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the 
affordability of the capital investment plans.  These provide an indication of the 
impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council 
is asked to approve the following indicators: 

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream.
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

Ratio -0.64% -0.07% +0.26% 

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in 
the Capital Programme Budget report. 

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the Council Tax  
This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to the 
three year capital programme compared to the Council’s existing approved 
commitments and current plans.  The assumptions are based on the budget, but will 
invariably include some estimates, such as the level of Government support, which 
are not published over a three year period. 

Forward 
Projection 

2012/13 

Forward 
Projection

2013/14 

Forward 
Projection

2014/15 
Council Tax - Band D £1.45 £1.86 £3.83

44



Annex E(ii) 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement

The concept of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) was introduced when the 
Local Government Capital Finance System was changed on 1 April 1990.  This 
required local authorities to assess their outstanding debt and to make an annual 
charge to the General Fund of 4% of the General Fund Debt. 

These regulations have now been amended and Department for Local Government & 
Communities (DCLG) issued new regulations in 2008 which require a local authority 
to calculate for the current financial year an amount of MRP which it considers 
“prudent”.  The broad aim of a prudent provision is to ensure that debt is repaid over 
a period that is reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital 
expenditure provides benefits or in the case of borrowing supported by government, 
reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the determination of the grant.  
The Council can choose to charge more than the minimum. 

It is a requirement of these new regulations that full Council approve an annual MRP 
Statement of its policy on making MRP. 

As capital expenditure is incurred which cannot be immediately financed through 
capital receipts or grant the Council’s borrowing need (its Capital Financing 
Requirement) will be positive and an MRP will be required.  In practice the Council is 
unlikely to need to borrow externally in the medium term as it has sufficient revenue 
investments, arising from the Council’s reserves and balances to cover this 
expenditure.  However it will still need to make a charge to revenue for this “internal 
borrowing”. 

The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in local government 
is expected to bring more PFI schemes on balance sheet and to result in some 
leases (or parts of leases) being reclassified as finance lease instead of operating 
leases. These contracts would become subject to the requirement to provide MRP. 
IFRS requires these changes to be accounted for retrospectively. With the result that 
an element of the rental or service charge payable in previous years will be taken to 
the balance sheet to reduce the liability. On its own this change would result in a one-
off increase to the capital financing requirement, and an equal increase in revenue 
account balances. This is not seen as a prudent course of action and as such the 
guidance recommends the inclusion in the annual MRP charge of an amount equal to 
the amount that has been taken to the balance sheet to reduce the liability, including 
the retrospective element in the first year. 

The guidance sets out four options for making MRP.  It envisages that authorities can 
distinguish between borrowing that is “supported” (through the RSG system) and 
other “unsupported or prudential” borrowing. The first two methods should only be 
used for “supported” borrowing 

1) The regulatory method.  This involves following the existing practice outlined 
in the former DCLG regulation.  For the Council this is essentially the same as 
the CFR method. 

2) The CFR Method.  This involves setting the MRP equal to 4% of the Capital 
Financing Requirement at the end of the preceding year.  

3) The Asset Life Method.  This method requires MRP to be charged over the 
asset life.  The asset life is determined in the year MRP commences and is 
not changed.  MRP will not be charged until the asset becomes operational.  

45



Annex E(ii) 

Therefore it will be possible to take an MRP holiday for those assets in 
construction. 

4) The Depreciation Method.  This requires the MRP to equal the actual 
depreciation based on standard accounting procedures.   

Recommended Policy

In setting the 2012/13 budget and beyond the following policy is recommended: 

1) There will be a presumption that capital receipts will be allocated to the 
appropriate assets in relation to the constraints of the medium term financial 
strategy. 

2) The Council will identify the level of “supported borrowing” and use the CFR 
Method i.e 4% of this figure as part of the MRP charge.  The supported 
borrowing will be used in full irrespective of the service block the funding was 
allocated in the grant settlement and will also be allocated to the appropriate 
assets in relation to the constraints of the medium term financial strategy. .For 
the remaining “unsupported borrowing” the Council will use the asset life 
method.   

The actual charge made in the year will be based on applying the above policy to the 
previous years actual capital expenditure and funding decisions.  Therefore the 
2012/13 charge will be based on 2011/12 capital out-turn. 

46



Annex E(iii) 

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT 

The Treasury Management service is an important part of the overall financial 
management of the Council’s affairs. The prudential indicators in Annex E(i) consider 
the affordability and impact of capital expenditure decisions, and set out the Council’s 
overall capital framework. The Treasury Management service considers the effective 
funding of these decisions. Together they form part of the process which ensures the 
Council meets its balanced budget requirement under the Local Government Finance 
Act 1992. 

The Council’s treasury activities are strictly regulated by statutory requirements and a 
professional code of practice - 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury Management in Public 
Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM 
Code”). This Council adopted the Code of Practice on Treasury Management in 
March 2002, and will adopt the revised Code.  

As a result of adopting the Code the Council also adopted a Treasury Policy 
Statement. This adoption is the requirement of one of the prudential indicators.   

The Code of Practice requires an annual strategy to be reported to Council outlining 
the expected treasury activity for the forthcoming 3 years.  A key requirement of this 
report is to explain both the risks, and the management of the risks, associated with 
the treasury service.  A further treasury report is produced after the year-end to 
report on actual activity for the year, and a new requirement of the revision of the 
Code of Practice is that there is a mid-year monitoring report. 

This strategy covers: 

The Council’s debt and investment projections;  
The Council’s estimates and limits on future debt levels; 
The expected movement in interest rates; 
The Council’s borrowing and investment strategies; 
Treasury performance indicators; 
Specific limits on treasury activities; 

Debt and Investment Projections 2012/13 – 2014/15 
The borrowing requirement comprises the expected movement in the CFR and any 
maturing debt which will need to be re-financed.  The Council does not anticipate any 
external borrowing over the period 2012/13 to 2013/14, but projects that it will be 
required to borrow externally in 2014/15. The table below highlights the expected 
change in investment balances. 

£’000 2012/13 
Estimated

2013/14 
Estimated 

2014/15 
Estimated 

External Debt
Debt  at 31 March 0 0 6,000

Investments
Investments at  31 March 12,000 3,000 0

47



Annex E(iii) 

Limits to Borrowing Activity 
Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure the 
Council operates its activities within well defined limits. For the first of these the 
Council needs to ensure that its total borrowing net of any investments, does not, 
except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the 
estimates of any additional CFR for 2012/13 and the following two financial years.  
This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures 
that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.       

The Borough Treasurer reports that the Council has complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This 
view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in 
this budget report.   

The Authorised Limit for External Debt  
A further key prudential indicator represents a control on the overall level of 
borrowing.  This represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this 
limit needs to be set or revised by full Council. It reflects the level of external debt 
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in 
the longer term.   

This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ 
plans, or those of a specific council, although no control has yet been exercised. 

The Council is asked to approve the following Authorised Limit: 

Authorised limit £000 2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

Borrowing 26,000 28,000 30,000
Other long term 
liabilities 

19,000 19,000 18,000

Total 45,000 47,000 48,000

Operational Boundary for External Debt 
The Authority is also recommended to approve the operational Boundary for external 
debt for the same period. The proposed Operational Boundary is based on the same 
estimates as the Authorised Limit but reflects directly the estimate of the most likely 
but not worst case scenario, without the additional headroom included within the 
Authorised Limit to allow for unusual cash movements. 

Operational 
Boundary £m

2012/13 
Estimate 

2013/14 
Estimate 

2014/15 
Estimate 

Borrowing 24,000 26,000 28,000
Other long term 
liabilities 

17,000 17,000 16,000

Total 41,000 43,000 44,000

Borrowing in advance of need.  
The Borough Treasurer may do this under delegated power where, for instance, a 
sharp rise in interest rates is expected, and so borrowing early at fixed interest rates 
will be economically beneficial or meet budgetary constraints.  Whilst the Borough 

48



Annex E(iii) 

Treasurer will adopt a cautious approach to any such borrowing, where there is a 
clear business case for doing so borrowing may be undertaken to fund the approved 
capital programme or to fund future debt maturities.  Risks associated with any 
advance borrowing activity will be subject to appraisal in advance and subsequent 
reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism. However given the 
level of investments projected for 2013/14 it is not expected that any borrowing in 
advance of need will be required in 2012/13. 

Expected Movement in Interest Rates 

The Council has appointed Sector as its treasury advisor and part of their service is 
to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.  The following table gives 
the Sector central view on the future levels of the Bank Rate 

Medium-Term Rate Estimates (averages) 
Annual 
Average % 

Bank 
Rate 

Money Rates PWLB Rates* 

3 month 1 year 5 year 25 year 50 year 
March 2012 0.50 0.70 1.50 2.30 4.20 4.30 
June 2012 0.50 0.70 1.50 2.30 4.20 4.30 
Sept 2012 0.50 0.70 1.50 2.30 4.30 4.40 
Dec 2012 0.50 0.70 1.60 2.40 4.30 4.40 
March 2013 0.50 0.75 1.70 2.50 4.40 4.50 
June 2013 0.50 0.80 1.80 2.60 4.50 4.60 
Sept 2013 0.75 0.90 1.90 2.70 4.60 4.70 
Dec 2013 1.00 1.20 2.20 2.80 4.70 4.80 
March 2014 1.25 1.40 2.40 2.90 4.80 4.90 
       
* Borrowing Rates 

Growth in the UK economy is expected to be weak in the next two years and there is 
a risk of a technical recession. Bank Rate, currently 0.5%, underpins investment 
returns and is not expected to start increasing until quarter 3 of 2013 despite inflation 
currently being well above the Monetary Policy Committee inflation target. Hopes for 
an export led recovery appear likely to be disappointed due to the Eurozone 
sovereign debt crisis depressing growth in the UK’s biggest export market. The 
Comprehensive Spending Review, which seeks to reduce the UK’s annual fiscal 
deficit, will also depress growth during the next few years. 

This challenging and uncertain economic outlook has several key treasury 
management implications. 

• The Eurozone sovereign debt difficulties, most evident in Greece, provide a 
clear indication of much higher counterparty risk. This continues to suggest 
the use of higher quality counterparties for shorter time periods 

• Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2012/13 

Borrowing Strategy 2012/13 
Given the level of current investments, the Council does not envisage any long-term 
borrowing in 2012/13 although the Authorised Limit for External Debt has been set to 
enable the Council to manage its cash flow effectively through the use of temporary 
borrowing, in the unlikely event that this should be necessary. 

49



Annex E(iv) 

Investment Strategy 2012/13 – 2014/15 

Investment Policy 
The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  

Key Objectives  
The Council’s investment strategy primary objectives are safeguarding the re-
payment of the principal and interest of its investments on time first and ensuring 
adequate liquidity second – the investment return being a third objective.  Following 
the economic background outlined in the Treasury Management Strategy, the current 
investment climate has one over-riding risk consideration that of counterparty 
security risk.  As a result of these underlying concerns officers are implementing an 
operational investment strategy which maintains the tightened controls already in 
place in the approved investment strategy.   

Investment Counterparty Selection Criteria 
The primary principle governing the Council’s investment criteria is the security of its 
investments, although the yield or return on the investment is also a key 
consideration.   

After this main principle the Council will ensure: 
• It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it 

will invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with 
adequate security, and monitoring their security.  This is set out in the 
Specified and Non-Specified investment sections below. 

• It has sufficient liquidity in its investments.  For this purpose it will set out 
procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds may 
prudently be committed.  These procedures also apply to the Council’s 
prudential indicators covering the maximum principal sums invested.   

The Borough Treasurer will maintain a counterparty list in compliance with the 
following criteria and will revise the criteria and submit them to Council for approval 
as necessary.  This criteria is separate to that which chooses Specified and Non-
Specified investments as it provides an overall pool of counterparties considered high 
quality the Council may use rather than defining what its investments are.   

The rating criteria use the lowest common denominator method of selecting 
counterparties and applying limits.  This means that the application of the Council’s 
minimum criteria will apply to the lowest available rating for any institution.  For 
instance if an institution is rated by two agencies, one meets the Council’s criteria, 
the other does not, the institution will fall outside the lending criteria.  This is in 
compliance with the CLG’s Guidance and the 2011 CIPFA TM Code. 

Credit rating information is supplied by our treasury consultants on all active 
counterparties that comply with the criteria below.  Any counterparty failing to meet 
the criteria would be omitted from the counterparty list.  Any rating changes, rating 
watches (notification of a likely change), rating outlooks (notification of a possible 
longer term change) are provided to officers almost immediately after they occur and 
this information is considered before dealing.  For instance a negative rating watch 
applying to a counterparty at the minimum Council criteria will be suspended from 
use, with all others being reviewed in light of market conditions. 

50



Annex E(iv) 

In accordance with the Investment Guidance, the Council will, in considering the 
security of proposed investments, follow different procedures according to which of 
two categories, Specified or Unspecified, the proposed investment falls into.  

Specified Investments offer high security and high liquidity and are: 
♦ Denominated, paid and repaid in sterling; 
♦ Not long term investments, i.e. they are due to be repaid within 12 

months of the date on which the investment was made; 
♦ Not defined as capital expenditure; and 
♦ Are made with a body or in an investment scheme which has been 

awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating agency or are made 
with the UK Government or a Local Authority in England, Wales, 
Scotland or Northern Ireland. 

Non-Specified Investments are those which do not meet the definition of Specified 
Investments. 

The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment counterparties (both 
Specified and Non-specified investments) is: 

♦ UK Banks and Building Societies – must meet the minimum 
following credit criteria 

Fitch Moodys S&P 
Short Term F1 Short Term P1 Short Term A1 
Individual A Support 1 to 3 Financial Strength C  
Individual A/B Support 1 to 3   
Individual B Support 1 to 3   
Individual B/C Support 1 to 2   

♦ In addition to the criteria above part nationalised UK Banks (Lloyds 
Bank and Royal Bank of Scotland). These banks can be included if 
they continue to be part nationalised or they meet the ratings 
above. 

♦ Money Market Funds – AAA Rating Sterling Denominated 
♦ UK Government (including gilts and Debt Management Account 

Deposit Facility (DMADF)) 
♦ UK Local Authorities 

Country and sector considerations. 
Due care will be taken to consider the country, group and sector exposure of the 
Council’s investments.  The current investment strategy limits all investments to UK 
Banks and Building Societies. 

Use of additional information other than credit ratings. 
Additional requirements under the Code of Practice now require the Council to 
supplement credit rating information.  Whilst the above criteria relies primarily on the 
application of credit ratings to provide a pool of appropriate counterparties for officers 
to use, additional operational market information will be applied before making any 
specific investment decision from the agreed pool of counterparties.  This additional 
market information (for example Credit Default Swaps, negative rating 
watches/outlooks) will be applied to compare the relative security of differing 
investment counterparties. 

51



Annex E(iv) 

Time and Monetary Limits applying to Investments. 
The time and monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s Counterparty List are as 
follows (the monetary limits will cover both Specified and Non-Specified 
Investments): 

  Money Limit Time Limit 

UK Banks and Building 
Societies 

£7m 364 days 

Money Market Funds £7m n/a 

UK Government unlimited 364 days 

UK Local Authorities £7m 364 days 

The proposed criteria for Specified and Non-Specified investments are attached 
to this document. 

In the normal course of the council’s cash flow operations it is expected that both 
Specified and Non-specified investments will be utilised for the control of liquidity as 
both categories allow for short term investments.  
  
The use of longer term instruments (greater than one year from inception to 
repayment) will fall in the Non-specified investment category.  These instruments will 
only be used where the Council’s liquidity requirements are safeguarded however the 
current investment limits for 2012/13 restrain all investments to less than 1 year. Any 
amendment to this strategy will require the credit-criteria to be amended to include a 
long-term rating. This will be addressed through the formal approval by Council of a 
revised Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Investment Strategy. 

Economic Investment Considerations 

Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow 
requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates. The UK Bank Rate is 
forecast to rise from quarter 3 of 2013, however there are downside risks to this 
forecast (ie start of increases in Bank Rate is delayed even further) if economic 
growth remains weaker for longer than expected. However, should the pace of 
growth pick up more than expected there could be upside risk, particularly if Bank of 
England inflation forecasts for two years ahead exceed the 2% inflation target. 

The criteria for choosing counterparties set out above provide a sound approach to 
investment in “normal” market circumstances.  Whilst Members are asked to approve 
this base criteria above, under the exceptional current market conditions the Borough 
Treasurer may temporarily restrict further investment activity to those counterparties 
considered of higher credit quality than the minimum criteria set out for approval.  
These restrictions will remain in place until the banking system returns to “normal” 
conditions.  Similarly the time periods for investments will be restricted. 

Examples of these restrictions would be the greater use of the Debt Management 
Deposit Account Facility (a Government body which accepts local authority deposits), 
Money Market Funds, and strongly rated institutions.  The credit criteria have been 
amended to reflect these facilities. 

52



Annex E(iv) 

Icelandic Bank Investments 
The Icelandic courts have supported the view that the Council be treated as a 
preferred creditor, thereby seeing a high proportion of the investment being returned. 
The actual repayment is currently expected to be partially in foreign currency assets. 
It is currently too early to provide a definitive policy on how this exchange rate risk 
will be managed, but the expectation will be that the risk will be managed proactively 
and assets converted to sterling at the earliest opportunity.

Sensitivity to Interest Rate Movements 
Future Council accounts will be required to disclose the impact of risks on the 
Council’s treasury management activity.  Whilst most of the risks facing the treasury 
management service are addressed elsewhere in this report (credit risk, liquidity risk, 
market risk, maturity profile risk), the impact of interest rate risk is discussed but not 
quantified. The table below highlights the estimated impact of a 1% 
increase/decrease in all interest rates to the estimated treasury management income 
for next year.  That element of the investment portfolio which is of a longer term, fixed 
interest rate nature will not be affected by interest rate changes. 

£’000 2012/13 
Estimated 

+ 1% 

2012/13 
Estimated 

- 1% 
Revenue Budgets   
Investment income 250 250

Treasury Management Limits on Activity 
There are four further treasury activity limits, which were previously prudential 
indicators.  The purpose of these are to contain the activity of the treasury function 
within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of an adverse 
movement in interest rates.  However if these are set to be too restrictive they will 
impair the opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance.  The indicators are: 

Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure – This identifies a maximum 
limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of 
investments 
Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure – Similar to the previous indicator 
this covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates. 
Maturity structures of borrowing – These gross limits are set to reduce the 
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and 
are required for upper and lower limits.   
Total principal funds invested for greater than 364 days – These limits are set 
with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for 
early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of funds after 
each year-end. 

The Council is asked to approve the limits: 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 
Interest rate Exposures 
 Upper Upper Upper 
Limits on fixed interest 
rates based on net debt 

£37m £40m £41m 

Limits on variable interest 
rates based on net debt 

£15m £20m £21m 

53



Annex E(iv) 

Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2012/13 
Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 100% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 0% 
2 years to 5 years 0% 0% 
5 years to 10 years 0% 0% 
10 years and above 0% 0% 
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days
Principal sums invested > 
364 days 

£m 
0 

£m 
0 

£m 
0 

Performance Indicators 
The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the Council to set 
performance indicators to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over the 
year.  These are distinct historic indicators, as opposed to the prudential indicators, 
which are predominantly forward looking.  For 2012/13 the Council does not expect 
to enter into any borrowing and as such the relevant benchmark will relate only to 
investments and will be the “7 Day LIBID Rate”. The results of these indicators will be 
reported in the Treasury Annual Report. 

Treasury Management Advisers   
The Council uses Sector as its treasury management consultants. The Council 
recognises that responsibility for treasury management decision remains with the 
organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our 
external service providers. 

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. 
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which 
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subject to 
regular review. 

  
Member and Officer Training 
The increased Member consideration of treasury management matters and the need 
to ensure officers dealing with treasury management are trained and kept up to date 
requires a suitable training process for Members and officers.  Following the 
nomination of the Governance and Audit Committee to examine and assess the 
effectiveness of the Treasury Management Strategy and Policies, initial training was 
provided to the Committee in November 2010. Further training is planned for 2012. 
Officer training is carried out in accordance with best practice and outlined in TMP 10 
Training and Qualifications to ensure that all staff involved in the Treasury 
Management function are fully equipped to undertake the duties and responsibilities 
allocated to them 

Risk Benchmarking  
Yield benchmarks are currently used to assess investment performance.  Discrete 
security and liquidity benchmarks are new requirements to the Member reporting, 
although the application of these is more subjective in nature.  The Council will 
review the practical application of such indicators over the coming year and will work 
in conjunction with the Council’s Treasury management advisers and Members to 
implement a scheme of risk benchmarks that adds value to the treasury management 
function. 

54



A
n

n
ex

 E
(i

v)
 

S
P

E
C

IF
IE

D
 IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
 

A
ll 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 li
st

ed
 b

el
o

w
 m

u
st

 b
e 

st
er

lin
g

-d
en

o
m

in
at

ed
.  

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

S
h

ar
e/

 L
o

an
 

C
ap

it
al

?
   

   
R

ep
ay

ab
le

/ 
R

ed
ee

m
ab

le
 

w
it

h
in

 1
2 

m
o

n
th

s?
 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

 C
re

d
it

 
R

at
in

g
 *

* 

C
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
 o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

im
u

m
 p

er
io

d
 

D
eb

t 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
A

g
en

cy
 D

ep
o

si
t 

F
ac

ili
ty

* 
 (

D
M

A
D

F
) 

* 
th

is
 fa

ci
lit

y 
is

 a
t p

re
se

nt
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 u
p 

to
 6

 m
on

th
s 

N
o 

Y
es

 
G

ov
t-

ba
ck

ed
 

In
-h

ou
se

 
36

4 
D

ay
s 

 

T
er

m
 d

ep
o

si
ts

 w
ith

 th
e 

U
K

 g
ov

er
nm

en
t 

or
 w

ith
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
in

 E
ng

la
nd

, 
W

al
es

, S
co

tla
nd

 o
r 

N
or

th
er

n 
Ir

el
an

d 
w

ith
 

m
at

ur
iti

es
 u

p 
to

 3
64

 D
ay

s 

N
o 

Y
es

 
H

ig
h 

se
cu

rit
y 

al
th

ou
gh

 L
A

s 
no

t 
cr

ed
it 

ra
te

d.
 

In
-h

ou
se

 a
nd

 b
y 

ex
te

rn
al

 fu
nd

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 
an

d 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
em

36
4 

D
ay

s 

T
er

m
 d

ep
o

si
ts

 w
ith

 c
re

di
t-

ra
te

d 
de

po
si

t 
ta

ke
rs

 (
ba

nk
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s)
, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
ca

lla
bl

e 
de

po
si

ts
, w

ith
 

m
at

ur
iti

es
 u

p 
to

 3
64

 D
ay

s 

N
o 

Y
es

 
 S

ee
 c

re
di

t g
rid

 
In

-h
ou

se
 a

nd
 b

y 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 

an
d 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 th

em

36
4 

D
ay

s 

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
o

f 
D

ep
o

si
t 

is
su

ed
 b

y 
cr

ed
it-

ra
te

d 
de

po
si

t t
ak

er
s 

(b
an

ks
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s)
 : 

up
 to

 3
64

 D
ay

s.
 

C
us

to
di

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

N
o 

Y
es

 
 S

ee
 c

re
di

t g
rid

T
o 

be
 u

se
d 

by
 e

xt
er

na
l f

un
d 

m
an

ag
er

s 
on

ly
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 a

nd
 p

ar
am

et
er

s 
ag

re
ed

 
w

ith
 th

em

36
4 

D
ay

s 

G
ilt

s 
: u

p 
to

 3
64

 D
ay

s 
N

o 
Y

es
 

G
ov

t-
ba

ck
ed

 
T

o 
be

 u
se

d 
by

 e
xt

er
na

l f
un

d 
m

an
ag

er
s 

on
ly

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 a
nd

 p
ar

am
et

er
s 

ag
re

ed
 

w
ith

 th
em

36
4 

D
ay

s 

55



In
ve

st
m

en
t 

S
h

ar
e/

 L
o

an
 

C
ap

it
al

?
   

   
R

ep
ay

ab
le

/ 
R

ed
ee

m
ab

le
 

w
it

h
in

 1
2 

m
o

n
th

s?
 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

 C
re

d
it

 
R

at
in

g
 *

* 

C
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
 o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

im
u

m
 p

er
io

d
 

M
o

n
ey

 M
ar

ke
t 

F
u

n
d

s 
T

he
se

 fu
nd

s 
do

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
an

y 
m

at
ur

ity
 d

at
e

N
o 

Y
es

 
 A

A
A

 R
at

in
g 

by
 

F
itc

h,
 M

oo
dy

s 
or

 
S

&
P

In
-h

ou
se

 a
nd

 b
y 

ex
te

rn
al

 fu
nd

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 
an

d 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
em

 

T
he

 p
er

io
d 

of
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
de

te
rm

in
ed

 a
t 

th
e 

ou
ts

et
 b

ut
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
ca

sh
 fl

ow
 a

nd
 

liq
ui

di
ty

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

F
o

rw
ar

d
 d

ea
ls

 w
ith

 c
re

di
t r

at
ed

 b
an

ks
 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s 
< 

1 
ye

ar
 (i

.e
. 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
de

al
 p

er
io

d 
pl

us
 p

er
io

d 
of

 d
ep

os
it)

N
o 

Y
es

 
 S

ee
 C

re
di

t G
rid

In
-h

ou
se

 a
nd

 b
y 

ex
te

rn
al

 fu
nd

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 
an

d 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
em

. 
T

ra
ck

in
g 

of
 a

ll 
fo

rw
ar

d 
de

al
s 

to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 a
nd

 r
ec

or
de

d.

1 
ye

ar
 in

 a
gg

re
ga

te
 

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 p

ap
er

[s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

 o
bl

ig
at

io
ns

 (
ge

ne
ra

lly
 w

ith
 a

 
m

ax
im

um
 li

fe
 o

f 9
 m

on
th

s)
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 is
su

ed
 

by
 b

an
ks

, c
or

po
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 is

su
er

s]
 

C
us

to
di

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 
pu

rc
ha

se
 

N
o 

Y
es

 
 S

ee
 C

re
di

t G
rid

T
o 

be
 u

se
d 

by
 e

xt
er

na
l f

un
d 

m
an

ag
er

s 
on

ly
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 a

nd
 p

ar
am

et
er

s 
ag

re
ed

 
w

ith
 th

em
 

9 
m

on
th

s 

T
re

as
u

ry
 b

ill
s 

 
[G

ov
er

nm
en

t d
eb

t s
ec

ur
ity

 w
ith

 a
 m

at
ur

ity
 

le
ss

 th
an

 o
ne

 y
ea

r 
an

d 
is

su
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
bi

dd
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
at

 a
 d

is
co

un
t t

o 
pa

r 
va

lu
e]

 C
us

to
di

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t r

eq
ui

re
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 

N
o 

Y
es

 
G

ov
t-

ba
ck

ed
  

T
o 

be
 u

se
d 

by
 e

xt
er

na
l f

un
d 

m
an

ag
er

s 
on

ly
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 a

nd
 p

ar
am

et
er

s 
ag

re
ed

 
w

ith
 th

em
 

1 
ye

ar
 

56



N
O

N
-S

P
E

C
IF

IE
D

 IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
S

A
ll 

in
ve

st
m

en
ts

 li
st

ed
 b

el
o

w
 m

u
st

 b
e 

st
er

lin
g

-d
en

o
m

in
at

ed
. 

In
ve

st
m

en
t 

(A
) 

W
h

y 
u

se
 it

?
 

(B
) 

A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
?

S
h

ar
e/

 
L

o
an

 
C

ap
it

al
?

   
  

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/ 

R
ed

ee
m

ab
le

 
w

it
h

in
 1

2 
m

o
n

th
s?

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

 c
re

d
it

 
ra

ti
n

g
 *

* 

C
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
 o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

im
u

m
 

m
at

u
ri

ty
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 

D
ep

os
its

 w
ith

 A
ut

ho
rit

y’
s 

B
an

ke
r 

w
he

re
 c

re
di

t 
ra

tin
g 

ha
s 

dr
op

pe
d 

be
lo

w
 

m
in

im
um

 c
rit

er
ia

 

W
he

re
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ba
nk

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 

m
ee

ts
 th

e 
hi

gh
 c

re
di

t r
at

in
g 

cr
ite

ria
 s

et
 o

ut
 

in
 th

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t S
tr

at
eg

y 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
lit

tle
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
bu

t t
o 

co
nt

in
ue

 u
si

ng
 

th
em

, a
nd

 in
 s

om
e 

in
st

an
ce

s 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

 p
la

ce
 d

ep
os

its
 w

ith
 th

em
, 

th
es

e 
de

po
si

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 o
f a

 v
er

y 
sh

or
t 

du
ra

tio
n 

th
us

 li
m

iti
ng

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 

da
yl

ig
ht

 e
xp

os
ur

e 
on

ly
 (

i.e
. f

lo
w

 o
f f

un
ds

 
in

 a
nd

 o
ut

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

da
y,

 o
r 

ov
er

ni
gh

t 
ex

po
su

re
).

 

N
o 

Y
es

 
n/

a 
In

-H
ou

se
 

36
4 

D
ay

s 

T
er

m
 d

ep
o

si
ts

 w
ith

 
cr

ed
it 

ra
te

d 
de

po
si

t 
ta

ke
rs

 (
ba

nk
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s)
 w

ith
 

m
at

ur
iti

es
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 1

 
ye

ar
 

(A
) 

(i)
 C

er
ta

in
ty

 o
f r

at
e 

of
 r

et
ur

n 
ov

er
 

pe
rio

d 
in

ve
st

ed
. (

ii)
 N

o 
m

ov
em

en
t i

n 
ca

pi
ta

l v
al

ue
 o

f d
ep

os
it 

de
sp

ite
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 
in

te
re

st
 r

at
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

 
(B

) 
(i)

 Il
liq

ui
d 

 : 
as

 a
 g

en
er

al
 r

ul
e,

 c
an

no
t 

be
 tr

ad
ed

 o
r 

re
pa

id
 p

rio
r 

to
 m

at
ur

ity
. 

(ii
) 

R
et

ur
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

lo
w

er
 if

 in
te

re
st

 r
at

es
 

ris
e 

af
te

r 
m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t. 
 

(ii
i) 

C
re

di
t r

is
k 

: p
ot

en
tia

l f
or

 g
re

at
er

 
de

te
rio

ra
tio

n 
in

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y 
ov

er
 lo

ng
er

 
pe

rio
d 

N
o 

N
o 

 S
ee

 C
re

di
t g

rid
In

-h
ou

se
 a

nd
 b

y 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 

an
d 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 th

em
 

5 
Y

ea
rs

C
er

ti
fi

ca
te

s 
o

f 
D

ep
o

si
t

w
ith

 c
re

di
t r

at
ed

 d
ep

os
it 

ta
ke

rs
 (

ba
nk

s 
an

d 
bu

ild
in

g 
so

ci
et

ie
s)

 w
ith

 
m

at
ur

iti
es

 g
re

at
er

 th
an

 1
 

ye
ar

 
C

us
to

di
al

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

t 
re

qu
ire

d 
pr

io
r 

to
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

(A
) 

(i)
 A

lth
ou

gh
 in

 th
eo

ry
 tr

ad
ab

le
, a

re
 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
ill

iq
ui

d.
 

(B
) 

(i)
 ‘M

ar
ke

t o
r 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ris

k’
 : 

Y
ie

ld
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
m

ov
em

en
t d

ur
in

g 
lif

e 
of

 C
D

 
w

hi
ch

 c
ou

ld
 n

eg
at

iv
el

y 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

pr
ic

e 
of

 
th

e 
C

D
.  

N
o 

Y
es

 
 S

ee
 C

re
di

t g
rid

T
o 

be
 u

se
d 

by
 

ex
te

rn
al

 fu
nd

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

on
ly

 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 a

nd
 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

ag
re

ed
 

w
ith

 th
em

 

5 
ye

ar
s

57



In
ve

st
m

en
t 

(A
) 

W
h

y 
u

se
 it

?
 

(B
) 

A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
?

S
h

ar
e/

 
L

o
an

 
C

ap
it

al
?

   
 

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/ 

R
ed

ee
m

ab
le

 
w

it
h

in
 1

2 
m

o
n

th
s?

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

 C
re

d
it

 
R

at
in

g
?

 

C
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
 o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

im
u

m
 

m
at

u
ri

ty
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 

C
al

la
b

le
 d

ep
o

si
ts

 w
ith

 
cr

ed
it 

ra
te

d 
de

po
si

t 
ta

ke
rs

 (
ba

nk
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s)
 w

ith
 

m
at

ur
iti

es
 g

re
at

er
 th

an
 1

 
ye

ar
 

(A
) 

(i)
 E

nh
an

ce
d 

in
co

m
e 

~ 
P

ot
en

tia
lly

 
hi

gh
er

 r
et

ur
n 

th
an

 u
si

ng
 a

 te
rm

 d
ep

os
it 

w
ith

 s
im

ila
r 

m
at

ur
ity

.  

(B
) 

(i)
 Il

liq
ui

d 
– 

on
ly

 b
or

ro
w

er
 h

as
 th

e 
rig

ht
 

to
 p

ay
 b

ac
k 

de
po

si
t; 

th
e 

le
nd

er
 d

oe
s 

no
t 

ha
ve

 a
 s

im
ila

r 
ca

ll.
 (

ii)
 p

er
io

d 
ov

er
 w

hi
ch

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t w
ill

 a
ct

ua
lly

 b
e 

he
ld

 is
 n

ot
 

kn
ow

n 
at

 th
e 

ou
ts

et
. (

iii
) 

In
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ris

k 
: 

bo
rr

ow
er

 w
ill

 n
ot

 p
ay

 b
ac

k 
de

po
si

t i
f 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

es
 r

is
e 

af
te

r 
de

po
si

t i
s 

m
ad

e.
  

N
o 

N
o 

 S
ee

  C
re

di
t G

rid
In

-h
ou

se
 a

nd
 b

y 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 

an
d 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 th

em
 

5 
ye

ar
s

U
K

 g
o

ve
rn

m
en

t 
g

ilt
s 

w
ith

 m
at

ur
iti

es
 in

 e
xc

es
s 

of
 1

 y
ea

r 

C
us

to
di

al
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
t 

re
qu

ire
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 p
ur

ch
as

e 

(A
) 

(i)
 E

xc
el

le
nt

 c
re

di
t q

ua
lit

y.
 (

ii)
V

er
y 

 
Li

qu
id

. 
(ii

i) 
If 

he
ld

 to
 m

at
ur

ity
, k

no
w

n 
yi

el
d 

(r
at

e 
of

 
re

tu
rn

) 
pe

r 
an

nu
m

 ~
 a

id
s 

fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

.  
(iv

) 
If 

tr
ad

ed
, p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 

ca
pi

ta
l g

ai
n 

th
ro

ug
h 

ap
pr

ec
ia

tio
n 

in
 v

al
ue

 
(i.

e.
 s

ol
d 

be
fo

re
 m

at
ur

ity
) 

(v
) 

N
o 

cu
rr

en
cy

 
ris

k 

(B
) 

(i)
 ‘M

ar
ke

t o
r 

in
te

re
st

 r
at

e 
ris

k’
 : 

Y
ie

ld
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
m

ov
em

en
t d

ur
in

g 
lif

e 
of

 
so

ve
re

ig
n 

bo
nd

 w
hi

ch
 c

ou
ld

 n
eg

at
iv

el
y 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
pr

ic
e 

of
 th

e 
bo

nd
 i.

e.
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

fo
r 

ca
pi

ta
l l

os
s.

  

N
o 

Y
es

 
G

ov
t b

ac
ke

d 
 T

o 
be

 u
se

d 
by

 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
on

ly
 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 a
nd

 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
ag

re
ed

 
w

ith
 th

em
 

10
 y

ea
rs

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

bu
t 

al
so

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

10
 y

ea
r 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
gi

lt

58



In
ve

st
m

en
t 

(A
) 

W
h

y 
u

se
 it

?
 

(B
) 

A
ss

o
ci

at
ed

 r
is

ks
?

S
h

ar
e/

 
L

o
an

 
C

ap
it

al
?

   
 

R
ep

ay
ab

le
/ 

R
ed

ee
m

ab
le

 
w

it
h

in
 1

2 
m

o
n

th
s?

 

S
ec

u
ri

ty
 / 

 
M

in
im

u
m

 c
re

d
it

 
ra

ti
n

g
 *

* 

C
ir

cu
m

st
an

ce
 o

f 
u

se
 

M
ax

im
u

m
 

m
at

u
ri

ty
 o

f 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 

F
o

rw
ar

d
 d

ep
o

si
ts

 w
ith

 
cr

ed
it 

ra
te

d 
ba

nk
s 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

so
ci

et
ie

s 
fo

r 
pe

rio
ds

 >
 1

 y
ea

r 
(i.

e.
 

ne
go

tia
te

d 
de

al
 p

er
io

d 
pl

us
 p

er
io

d 
of

 d
ep

os
it)

 

(A
) 

(i)
 K

no
w

n 
ra

te
 o

f r
et

ur
n 

ov
er

 p
er

io
d 

th
e 

m
on

ie
s 

ar
e 

in
ve

st
ed

 ~
 a

id
s 

fo
rw

ar
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

.  

(B
) 

(i)
 C

re
di

t r
is

k 
is

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
w

ho
le

 p
er

io
d,

 
no

t j
us

t w
he

n 
m

on
ie

s 
ar

e 
ac

tu
al

ly
 

in
ve

st
ed

.  
(ii

) 
C

an
no

t r
en

eg
e 

on
 m

ak
in

g 
th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t i
f c

re
di

t r
at

in
g 

fa
lls

 o
r 

in
te

re
st

 
ra

te
s 

ris
e 

in
 th

e 
in

te
rim

 p
er

io
d.

  

N
o 

N
o 

 S
ee

 C
re

di
t G

rid
In

-h
ou

se
 a

nd
 b

y 
ex

te
rn

al
 fu

nd
 

m
an

ag
er

s 
su

bj
ec

t 
to

 th
e 

gu
id

el
in

es
 

an
d 

pa
ra

m
et

er
s 

ag
re

ed
 w

ith
 th

em
. 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
of

 a
ll 

fo
rw

ar
d 

de
al

s 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

nd
 

re
co

rd
ed

. 

5 
ye

ar
s

D
ep

o
si

ts
 w

it
h

 u
n

ra
te

d
 

d
ep

o
si

t 
ta

ke
rs

 (
b

an
ks

 
an

d
 b

u
ild

in
g

 s
o

ci
et

ie
s)

 
b

u
t 

w
it

h
 u

n
co

n
d

it
io

n
al

 
fi

n
an

ci
al

 g
u

ar
an

te
e 

fr
o

m
 H

M
G

 o
r 

cr
ed

it
-

ra
te

d
 p

ar
en

t 
in

st
it

u
ti

o
n

 
: 

an
y 

m
at

ur
ity

 

(A
) 

C
re

di
t s

ta
nd

in
g 

of
 p

ar
en

t w
ill

 
de

te
rm

in
e 

ul
tim

at
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f c
re

di
t r

is
k 

N
o 

Y
es

 
  S

ee
 C

re
di

t G
rid

In
-h

ou
se

 a
nd

 b
y 

ex
te

rn
al

 fu
nd

 
m

an
ag

er
s 

su
bj

ec
t 

to
 th

e 
gu

id
el

in
es

 
an

d 
pa

ra
m

et
er

s 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
em

 

1 
ye

ar

59



Annex E(iv) 

Credit Criteria Grid 2012/13 

The criteria for providing a pool of high quality investment counterparties (both Specified 
and Non-specified investments) is: 

♦ UK Banks and Building Societies – must meet the minimum following 
credit criteria 

Fitch Moodys S&P 
Short Term F1 Short Term P1 Short Term A1 
Individual A Support 1 to 3 Financial Strength C  
Individual A/B Support 1 to 3   
Individual B Support 1 to 3   
Individual B/C Support 1 to 2   

♦ In addition to the criteria above part nationalised UK Banks (Lloyds Bank 
and Royal Bank of Scotland). These banks can be included if they 
continue to be part nationalised or they meet the ratings above. 

♦ Money Market Funds – AAA Rating Sterling Denominated 
♦ UK Government (including gilts and Debt Management Account Deposit 

Facility (DMADF)) 
♦ UK Local Authorities 

Time and Monetary Limits applying to Investments - The time and monetary limits 
for institutions on the Council’s Counterparty List are as follows (the monetary limits will 
cover both Specified and Non-Specified Investments)): 

  Money Limit Time Limit 

UK Banks and Building 
Societies 

£7m 364 days 

Money Market Funds £7m n/a 

UK Government unlimited 364 days 

UK Local Authorities £7m 364 days 

60



Unrestricted 

 
TO: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

24TH JANUARY 2012 
 

  
 

ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY 
BOROUGH TREASURER  

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
1.1 To present the revised Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy for review and approval.  

2 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee review and approve the attached Anti-

Fraud and Corruption Policy at Appendix A. 

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
3.1 To ensure that the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy is up to date and 

consistent with the current Financial Regulations. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
4.1 There is no alternative. 

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
5.1 In 2011 the National Fraud Authority estimated that fraud against Councils exceeds 

more than £2bn per year. Local authorities have a responsibility to ensure that they 
have adequate anti-fraud and corruption procedures. The Council has developed its 
counter fraud framework which is set out in the Counter Fraud Strategy. This draws 
together the measures in place for countering fraud including the Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption, Disciplinary, Whistle Blowing and Benefit Fraud Policies and the Financial 
Regulations. The Strategy sets out time frames for review of individual elements of 
the framework to ensure these are updated on a regular basis and remain fit for 
purpose. 

5.2 In line with the Strategy, the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy is due for 
review and has now been revised to ensure it is up to date and consistent with the 
latest Financial Regulations. The Policy is now attached at Appendix A for review and 
approval. 

6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
Borough Solicitor 

6.1 Nothing to add to the report. 
Borough Treasurer 

Agenda Item 8

61



Unrestricted 

6.2 As a member of the Corporate Governance Working Group the Borough Treasurer 
was involved in updating the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy. 
Equalities Impact Assessment 

6.3 Not applicable. 
Strategic Risk Management Issues  

6.4 The Audit Commission’s 2010/11 survey of frauds in local authorities identified a 37% 
increase in detected fraud losses with the number of fraud cases also increasing. It is 
vital for the Council to have robust and up to date policies in place to respond to the 
increased risk of fraud and corruption. 

7 CONSULTATION 
 Principal Groups Consulted 
7.1 Governance Working Group and the Corporate Management Team. 
 Method of Consultation 
7.2 The revised Policy was reviewed at the Governance Working Group on 5th December 

and suggested amendments made before being reviewed by the Corporate 
Management Team on 21st December 2011.  

 Representations Received 
7.3 Not applicable. 

Background Papers 
Counter Fraud Strategy 
 
Contact for further information 
Sally Hendrick, Head of Audit and Risk Management - 01344 352092 
Sally.hendrick@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

62



Unrestricted 

January 2012 

APPENDIX A 
ANTI- FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY  
 
1  INTRODUCTION  
 
1.1  Bracknell Forest Council seeks to provide high quality services and secure value 

for money for the citizens of Bracknell Forest. Fraud and corruption undermines 
these aims by diverting resources from legitimate activities, damaging public 
confidence in the Council and adversely affecting staff morale.  

 
1.2 The public are entitled to expect any local authority to conduct its affairs with 

integrity, honesty and openness, and to demand the highest standards of 
conduct from those working for it. The Council is committed to protecting the 
public funds entrusted to it and has a zero- tolerance policy regarding 
fraud and corruption.  

 
1.3 The Anti- Fraud and Corruption Policy forms part of the overall counter fraud and 

corruption framework which is set out in the Counter Fraud and Corruption 
Strategy. The Policy embodies a series of measures designed to frustrate any 
attempted fraudulent or corrupt act including bribery and the steps taken if such 
an act occurs.  This has been separated into three areas:  

 
• Culture; 
• Prevention; and 
• Detecting and Investigating.  

 
.  
2  CULTURE  
2.1 The Council will not tolerate fraud nor any form of corruption including bribery in 

the administration of its responsibilities, whether from inside or outside the 
Authority and is committed to creating an anti fraud and corruption culture.  The 
Borough Treasurer is responsible for the development and maintenance of an 
anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. Senior managers are required to deal swiftly 
and firmly with those who defraud or attempt to defraud the authority. 

 
2.2 Members and staff are expected to lead by example by working within the 

Council’s framework of guidance i.e. Code of Conduct for Employees, Code of 
Conduct for Members, Member/Officer Protocol, Financial Regulations and 
Contract Standing Orders. Copies of these policies may be obtained from 
Corporate Human Resources and Finance, respectively. In addition, the Council 
expects all its suppliers, contractors, agents, partner organisations and 
individuals to act honestly and with integrity. 

 
2.3 The Council wishes to encourage all citizens and customers of its services to 

report any suspicions and concerns as to possible fraud or corruption they may 
have about any aspect of the Council’s work. This can be done by speaking to 
either: 

  
• Their Ward Councillor; or  

63



Unrestricted 

January 2012 

• The relevant Service Director; or 
• The Council’s Borough Treasurer; or 
• The Council’s Borough Solicitor.   

 
2.4 It is the Council’s aim to create an atmosphere of honesty and openness 

amongst its staff. Staff may raise any concerns they may have about cases of 
potential fraud and corruption with: 
• Their Line Manager; or  
• Their Director; or  
• The Chief Executive; or 
• The Director of Corporate Services; or  
• The Borough Solicitor; or  
• The Borough Treasurer; or  
• The Head of Audit and Risk Management; or  
• The Council’s External Auditors.  

 
2.5 It is acknowledged that staff may feel reluctant to express their concerns for fear 

of being disloyal to their colleagues or to the Council or from fear of harassment 
or victimisation so alternatively may wish to raise their concerns under the 
Council’s Whistleblowing Policy. This is available to all employees including 
agency employees working for the Council as well as organisations providing 
goods or services or carrying out works for the Council. The Policy is in place to 
encourage and provide a mechanism to enable those to whom the procedure 
applies to raise serious concerns without fear of reprisal.  The Policy can be  
obtained from Corporate Human Resources. 

 
2.6  Whichever route is taken, the Council will ensure that complete anonymity and 

confidentiality is maintained at all times; all information received will be treated 
with respect and given appropriate care and consideration. Likewise, where 
sufficient information is given, anonymous phone calls, letters etc will be 
seriously investigated.  

  
 
3  PREVENTION 
  
3.1  The Council firmly believes that prevention is fundamental to beating fraud and 

corruption and it is essential to minimise the exposure to opportunities for fraud 
by instilling an anti-fraud culture amongst employees and Members and creating 
a robust system of internal controls. 

 
3.2 Employees 
 
3.2.1 The Council views its employees as its most important resource and recognises 

that its employees are the first line of defence in preventing fraud. Particular 
importance is attached to the recruitment process to ensure the best calibre of 
staff are appointed for each position. Appointment panels will obtain candidate 
references to verify their suitability, honesty and integrity and agencies used to 
supply staff will be asked to provide appropriate references and checks are 
undertaken to verify the identity and right to work of all potential employees. For 
certain posts, due to the nature of the work and the potential for working with 

64



Unrestricted 

January 2012 

vulnerable people, the Council will also carry out vetting checks to confirm 
whether a potential employee has a criminal record and, if so, whether this would 
conflict with the post applied for. 

 
3.2.2  All staff employed will be bound by the Council’s Code of Conduct for 

Employees. This states that employees should not place themselves in situations 
where their honesty and integrity may be questioned. The Code specifically 
covers the receipt and declaration of gifts and hospitality ( which is also covered 
in more detail in the Council’s Policy for Councillors and Employees on Travel, 
Subsistence, Other Expenses and Hospitality), misuse of any information 
obtained in the course of their employment for personal gain or benefit and 
conflicts of interest. Staff who are members of professional bodies will also be 
expected to abide by any codes of conduct issued by those bodies.  

 
3.2.3  The Disciplinary Procedure operated by the Council will be used to instigate and 

progress actions against staff involved in perpetrating fraud or corruption. The 
Procedure will be used regardless of whether the Police have been involved 
and/or any legal proceedings are being taken against the member of staff.  

 
3.2.4  Training is recognised as essential for the successful detection, investigation and 

prevention of fraud and corruption. Adequate financial resources will be provided 
to enable staff to attend training courses and seminars in order to remain 
conversant with current developments and initiatives.  

 
3.3 Members 
 
3.3.1  As elected representatives of the public, all Council Members have a duty to be 

fair, honest and open in their role and are required to operate within:-  
 

• Government legislation,  
• The Council’s Code of Conduct for Members  

 
3.3.2  In addition the following internal policies outline best practice:  

  
• Council Standing Orders and Financial Regulations; and  
• Locally adopted codes of conduct e.g. Member/Officer protocol. 

 
3.3.3  In particular, Members are required to declare and register any pecuniary and 

non pecuniary interests in accordance with the Code of Conduct for Members 
and the Localism Act 2011. 

.  
 
3.4 Systems of Internal Control 
 
3.4.1  The risk of fraud and corruption can be mitigated by robust financial management 

and a sound system of internal control. The Council has adopted a Constitution 
incorporating a Scheme of Delegations, Financial Regulations and Contract 
Standing Orders which provide framework for financial control within the 
Authority.  All staff are required to act in accordance with these procedures when 
carrying out their duties.   

65



Unrestricted 

January 2012 

  
3.4.2  The Borough Treasurer, as the Section 151 Officer, has a statutory duty to 

ensure that proper arrangements are made to administer the Council’s finances. 
In that capacity he advises the Council on changes to the systems of control, 
finance and administration and their associated rules and regulations.  

 
3.4.3 Each Council section has a responsibility for ensuring that its own system of 

controls secure probity and identify, prevent, deter and limit the extent of fraud 
and corruption. It is the responsibility of all managers to ensure that there are 
adequate controls in place within the systems for which they are responsible and 
that these are complied with at all times.  An effective system of internal controls 
will include:  

 
• adequate segregation of duties; 
• proper authorisation and approval procedures; 
• adequate physical security over assets; and 
• reliable monitoring and reporting arrangements. 

 
3.4.4 Support is provided in this by Internal Audit. The Borough Treasurer is 

responsible for ensuring that there are satisfactory internal audit arrangements in 
place to satisfy the Council’s statutory requirement to maintain an adequate and 
effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its systems of 
internal control in accordance with proper practices. Internal Audit’s planned work 
takes into account all factors affecting systems (including known and perceived 
risks) and the adequacy of existing controls. Audit plans are regularly reviewed 
and revised to take account of new developments 

 
3.4.5 The Director of Environment, Culture and Communities has responsibility for 

administering Housing and Council Tax Benefits. Support is provided by 
specialist resources to investigate any claims which are suspected of being 
fraudulent or containing material untruths. Should investigations reveal wider 
aspects and/or Council staff are implicated then the matter will be reported to the 
Borough Treasurer for further action.  

 
 
4  INVESTIGATION AND DETECTION  
 
4.1 The Council recognises that even the best controls may not prevent fraud or 

corruption. It therefore requires that any cases of suspected fraud or irregularity 
including bribery are reported to the Borough Treasurer immediately as specified 
in Financial Regulations.   

 
4.2 The Council will investigate all fraud and corruption committed against the 

Authority by individuals and/or organisations. All cases of fraud and corruption 
including bribery will be investigated and dealt with irrespective of the identity of 
the perpetrator. Investigations will be carried out with due diligence and within the 
legislative framework governing actions by individuals involved in the 
investigation of crime and/or offences. The Borough Treasurer shall be consulted 
and will approve the specific arrangements for investigating each case of 
suspected fraud.  

66



Unrestricted 

January 2012 

 
 
4.3 Exchange of Information  
 
4.3.1  There are various arrangements in place for sharing of data internally within the 

Council and for the regular exchange of information between the Council and 
other local authorities and agencies for the purpose of preventing and detecting 
fraud. These include participation in data matching across a range of public 
service organisations in order to detect fraud and erroneous payments.  

 
4.3..2 The Data Protection Act 1998 allows that personal data processed for any of the 

purposes outlined below are exempt from non disclosure provisions:  
  
• The prevention or detection of crime.  
• The apprehension or prosecution of offenders.  
• The assessment or collection of any tax or duty or of any imposition of a      

similar nature.  
 
4.3.3  Personal data is any data which would enable a person to be identified from the 

information provided. If personal data is to be disclosed for the reasons detailed 
above, only the minimum amount of data to satisfy the purpose will be disclosed. 
Questions about the interpretation of this paragraph should be addressed in the 
first instance to the Council’s Information Compliance Officer and the Borough 
Solicitor.  

 
4.4 Prosecution Policy  
  
4.4.1  The Borough Treasurer shall consider during the course of any investigation or, 

as appropriate, at its conclusion whether the matter may require investigation by 
the Police.  

  
4.4.2  Whilst the Council acknowledges that the Crown Prosecution Service make the 

ultimate decision on whether to proceed with a prosecution, the Police will be 
involved in all appropriate cases and prosecution sought if there is sufficient 
evidence.  

 
5  Conclusion  
 
5.1  The Council’s systems of control will be maintained and regularly reviewed. 

Managers are charged with ensuring controls are maintained which are sufficient 
to detect and prevent fraud and corruption. The Borough Treasurer is responsible 
for ensuring that systems and controls are audited and the Council will ensure 
that every possible support is given to maintain an environment which makes 
fraud and corruption difficult to perpetrate.  

 

67



68

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes - 8 November 2011
	5 Audit Plan
	2011-2012 - Audit Plan - Bracknell Forest Council v1 1

	6 Update on Progress - Certification of Claims and Returns
	7 Treasury Management
	Treasury Management Report 2012-13

	8 Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy
	Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy


